
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, DECEMBER 5, 2022 
 
 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 
 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
 

1. ROLL CALL   
 
2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA   

 
3. OLD BUSINESS 

a. NPO Workers Comp Requirements (Mayor)  
b. Boards And Commissions Vacancies Discussion (Mayor)  
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
c. Goldsboro Affordable Housing Committee & Strategic Plan (Matthew Whittle, Habitat for Humanity)  
d. HUD Monitoring: CDBG FY19 & FY20 (Community Relations Director)  
 

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
Invocation (Rev. Tom Millay, First Christian Church)  
Pledge of Allegiance  

 
III. ROLL CALL   

 
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of November 21, 2022 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS  
B.  Order of the Long Leaf Pine Presentation 
 

VI. PUBLIC HEARING 
C. Z-21-22 Lane Farms, Inc. (Residential 20 Agriculture to General Business) – North side of Belfast Rd. west 

of US 117 (Future (I-795) (Planning) – Continued from 11/7/22 
D. Z-23-22 Wayne County Government Complex (I-2, HB, O&I I, R-9 to O&I II) (Planning) 
E. Z-24-22 Sport Durst Automobile Dealerships (SC, IBP-1 to GB) (Planning) 
F. Non-Contiguous Annexation Petition – Harry and Mollie, LLC. (Planning)  
G. Z-25-22 Harry & Mollie, LLC (SC, IBP-1 to GB) (Planning) 

 
VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD  
 

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS  
H. Operating Budget Amendment FY22-23 (Finance)  
I. Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 2009 Rose Street to 

Christopher White (Finance)  
J. Ordinance Amendment – “Panhandling” (Police) 
K. Resolution – Radio Telemetry Upgrade– Phase III (Public Utilities) 
L. Resolution – Contract to proceed with New Hope Bar Screen Upgrade (Public Utilities) 
M. Resolution – Contract to proceed with Water Reclamation Facility Bulk Chemical Storage Tank Upgrade 

(Public Utilities) 
N. Resolution – Automatic Transfer Switch for Water Treatment Plant Upgrade, Automatic Transfer Switch for 

Neuse River Pump Station Upgrade, and Westbook Pump Station Generator System Upgrade (Public Utilities) 
O. Intent to Purchase using Procurement Exception - Sand Filter Service and Repair Parts (Public Utilities) 
P. Non-Contiguous (Satellite) Annexation Petition – J and J Daniels Farming Enterprises, LLC (Planning) 
Q. SU-13-22 Accessory Dwelling (Planning) 
R. SU-14-22 Fly Buy Auto, LLC. (Used Car Sales) (Planning) 
S. SU-15-22 C.A.L.M. Properties & Investments, LLC (Triplex) (Planning) 
T. Rescheduling Council Meetings for 2023 (Deputy City Clerk) 



2 

U. Boards and Commissions Meetings for 2023 (Deputy City Clerk) 
 

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION  
V. Encroachment Agreement for Cry Freedom Missions (City Manager) 
 

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XI. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  
 

XII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIII. ADJOURN 



Goldsboro Affordable Housing 
Committee & Strategic Plan

ws item c



The Need
From the Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice
By UNC Greensboro Center for 
Housing & Community Studies



The Solution
From the Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice
By UNC Greensboro Center for 
Housing & Community Studies



Vision

A city that prioritizes and 
promotes affordable 
housing opportunities 
and equitable community 
development.



Mission

To work in conjunction with 
the City’s leadership and staff 
to advise the City Council on 
matters pertaining to housing 
challenges, opportunities and 
options that will result in fair, 
safe and affordable housing 
throughout the City. 



Affordable Housing: What?
• Housing is considered affordable when it 

costs less than 30% of gross household 
income.



Affordable Housing: Who?
• Everyone, but often encompasses those 

families whose housing needs are not 
being met by “normal” market forces.

• Typically these families range from under 
50% median family income to 120%.



Affordable Housing: Where?
• Not isolated to specific areas

• Throughout the city, in every neighborhood

• Mixed-income neighborhoods beneficial



Affordable Housing: Why?
• Goldsboro has a poverty rate of 24.3%

• 52% households under 80% median family income

• 27% households cost-burdened (30-50% income on housing) 

• 18% households severely cost-burdened, 
(>50% income on housing)



Affordable Housing: Why?
• 2.0% households overcrowded

• 2.7% households lack complete plumbing and/or 
kitchen facilities

• 39% households have housing need

• 21% households have severe housing need



Affordable Housing: Why?
• 12.3% of households receive a housing voucher

• 87% of housing units are occupied

• 60% are renter-occupied

• 40% are owner-occupied



Affordable Housing Spectrum



Housing Challenges
• Housing Supply – not enough units, especially at 

affordable prices

• Housing Diversity – not enough choice in type, size 
and/or price

• Housing Quality – high number of vacant and/or 
distressed houses not safe or healthy



Housing Challenges
• Housing Displacement – long-time homeowners & 

renters have difficulty remaining due to increasing costs 
(values, taxes, rents, repairs)

• Homelessness – those in need of supportive services 
for successful housing



Strategic Considerations
• Repair v. Demolition

• New Construction v. Renovation

• Crime & Safety – Reality v. Perception

• Condition of surrounding houses



Strategic Considerations
• Access to health care, grocery stores, recreation

• Access to employment opportunities

• Access to transportation

• Who owns the land



Strategic Considerations
• Gentrification v. importance of diverse neighborhoods

• Zoning & Land use

• Infrastructure needed

• Availability of credit/financing & 
down payment assistance



HOW?
• Create a new, limited scope Affordable Housing 

Advisory Committee to create this plan

• Charge the Commission on Community Relations 
and Development to create an ad-hoc 
committee to create this plan

OR



Committee Role

• Create & propose to City Council a 10-year 
plan for affordable housing & equitable 
community development

• Assist & advise Council in monitoring 
plan & updating as necessary

Role is TO: 



Committee Role

• Help identify new & creative solutions to ongoing 
housing & community development challenges

• Coordinate with Planning Board & Community 
Development/Relations Commission 
when appropriate

Role is TO: 



Committee Role

• Replace or compete with Planning Board or the 
Community Development/Relations Commission

• Have any policy, fiscal or regulatory authority

• Approve or block new development

Role is NOT TO: 



Committee Membership
• Grassroots & impacted community members

• Affordable housing related agencies & nonprofits

• For-profit builders and businesses

• Other stakeholders: transportation, 
education, health, faith, military



w.s. d



1 of 16 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
NOVEMBER 21, 2022 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council Chambers, City 
Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on November 21, 2022.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Greg Batts 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney  
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

Adoption of the Agenda.  Councilwoman Jones requested moving Item H, Purchase of Lithium Powered Golf 
Carts and Upgrades to Golf Cart Storage Building to Items Requiring Individual Action. Councilwoman Matthews 
requested removing Item Q, Ordinance Amendment-Panhandling from the agenda until a later date. Upon motion of Mayor 
Pro Tem Polack, seconded by Councilwoman Jones, and unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda with the 
necessary changes.  

New Business.  
FY21 Audit. Chad Cook with FORVIS provided the following information: 

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Board Presentation -
Preliminary Audit Results

City of Goldsboro / November 21, 2022

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.
FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Audit Matters

2

 We are in the process of auditing the financial statements of the City of Goldsboro as of June
30, 2021.

 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and perform an audit to
obtain reasonable assurance the financials are free from material misstatement.

 We expect the audit procedures to be complete and the report to be ready in time to present to
the City Council at the December 19 th meeting.

 Services Performed:
- Audit of the 2021 basic financial statements
- Compliance audit in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit

Implementation Act

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

General Fund – Fund Balance Summary

3

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

General Fund– Fund Balance Summary

4

$-

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

$45,000,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

GENERAL FUND

Fund balance available for appropria�on Total expenditures and rou�ne transfers

Item A



2 of 16 

There were no comments or questions regarding the audit update.  

FY2021-22 Financial Update. Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director provided the following information: 

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Utility Fund

5

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Utility Fund

6

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Compliance
Reporting

7

 Report on Compliance for each Major State Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

 Major Federal Programs
 66.458 – Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State

Revolving Funds
 21.019 – Coronavirus Relief Fund

 Major State Programs
 DOT-4 – State Street-Aid to Municipalities (“Powell

Bill”)

No compliance findings, or findings related to internal
controls over compliance have been noted during our
testing of any of the above major programs.

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Assurance / Tax / Advisory

forvis.com

Questions?

FY2021 -22 FINANCIAL UPDATE

Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director

November 7, 2022

General Fund – Collec�ons
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

2

General Fund Collec�ons
FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual

3

Stormwater Fund – Collec�ons
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

and
Budget to Actual FY2021-22

4

U�lity Fund – Collec�ons
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

5

U�lity Fund Collec�ons
FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual

6



3 of 16 
 

  

 

 

 
 
Council discuused the budget and commended Ms. Gwynn. City Manager Salmon will provide Council an equipment 
readiness report as requested by Councilman Gaylor. 

 
Use of Public Utilities Capital Reserve to fund Capital Improvement Projects. Robert Sherman, Public Utilities 

Director, provided the following information: 
 
The City of Goldsboro Public Utilities Department has an approved FY22-23 budget for the following capital 

improvement projects: Compost - Bulldozer; Water Treatment - Automatic Transfer Switch for the Neuse River Pump 
Station; Wastewater Treatment - Westbrook Pump Station generator replacement, New Hope Lift Station bar screen 
replacement, Chemical Bulk Storage Tank replacement, CITI Telemetry replacement final phase of a 3-phase project, Sand 
Filter #2 rehabilitation. Due to rising cost of materials and labor, additional funding is required to complete these projects. 
The Utility Capital Reserve fund was established in FY22-23 to fund Capital Improvement projects and currently has $1.5M 
in the fund.  

 

Downtown MSD &
Occupancy Tax Collec�ons

Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

7

Downtown MSD &
Occupancy Tax Collec�ons

FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual

8

Actual Collec�ons
Comparison Actual Current & Prior (unaudited)

9

Summary –
FY2021-22 Budget to Actual Expenditures

10

Fund Balance Appropria�ons
FY 2021-22

11

General Fund $ 156,633
PO rollover

U�lity Fund $ 397,761
PO rollover, AIA & MRFS grants $6K

Downtown MSD $ 0
None

Occupancy Tax Fund $ 150,000
Musco Ligh�ng $110K & Adver�sing $40K

Stormwater Fund $ 640,000
Stormwater Project-Assessment (CDM) _________

Total $1,344,394

FY2021-22 Net Opera�ng Results
(Modified Accrual - unaudited)

12

Questions?



4 of 16 

The matrix identifies for each project the budgeted amount, bid amount and funding shortfall. 

Project Budgeted Amt Bid Difference 

WTP Automatic Transfer 
Switch $100,000.00 $240,905.00   ($140,905.00) 

Westbook Generator $500,000.00 $794,571.00 ($294,571.00) 

New Hope Bar Screen $200,000.00 $304,400.00 ($104,400.00) 

Bulk Chemical Tank $45,000.00 $168,200.00 ($123,200.00) 

CITI replace & program 
obsolete radios $300,000.00 $316,388.00 ($16,388.00) 

Sand Filter Rehab $182,948.00 $188,948.00 ($6,000.00) 

Bulldozer $163,162.00 $189,987.48 ($26,825.48) 

TOTAL ($712,289.48) 

Staff recommended that Council approve the use of the Public Utilities Capital Reserve fund in the amount of 
$712,289.48 to provide the additional funding required to complete the budgeted capital projects. 

Goldsboro Tourism Council Annual Report. Dustin Pike, Chair of the Goldsboro Tourism Council provided the 
following annual update: 

Commission on Community Relations and Development Annual Report. Washea Lancaster, Vice-Chair and 
Terrie Bradley, Chair of the Commission on Community Relations and Development provided the following annual update: 

Goldsboro Tourism Council

Dus�n Pike, Chairperson

11/21/22

How Occupancy Tax Works
• 6% Occupancy Tax in the City limits.
• 5% is remitted to the City and 1% is remitted to the County.
• Occupancy Tax Funds:

– Tourism Assets
– Tourism Staff & Office Operations
– Marketing of Goldsboro/Wayne County to Tourist
– Promotion of Tourism Related Events & Activities

• Tourism doesn’t use General Tax Funds

11/21/2022 2

Tourism at a Glance for FY21-22
• $939,388 of Occupancy Taxes – City
• $374,555 of Sales Tax – County & City
• $299,095 of Real Property Tax – City
• $172M In Visitor Spending in 2021
• Tourism Employs Over 1,119 People

11/21/2022 3

Tourism Event Highlights FY 21-22
• USTA Tennis Tournament
• Kepner Cup
• NC Lax Fest (Boys & Girls Tournaments)
• Freedom Fest
• Goldsboro/Dillard Alumni Weekend
• US Quidditch Mid Atlantic Regional Championship

11/21/2022 4

Tourism in FY22-23
• Aggressive Revenue Projections

– Ahead of Collection Schedule YTD

• Airshow in 2023
• All FY21/22 Events Returning for FY22/23

11/21/2022 5



5 of 16 
 

 

 

  
 

Herman Park Center and T.C. Coley Center Update. City Manager Tim Salmon provided the following 
information: 

 
Herman Park Center (HPC), formerly the Odd Fellow Home orphanage built in 1892, was purchased and renovated 

by the City in 1978. The 16,000-square foot building features an auditorium/gymnasium, kitchen, meeting rooms, fitness 
center, and office space for the City Park & Recreation (P&R) staff. 

 
T.C. Coley Center (TCCC), formerly the City W.A. Foster Center built in 1938, was renovated in 2018 at a cost of 

$210K to remove asbestos and renovate the recreation room floors. The 13,000-square foot building features a gymnasium 
that is currently home to Ashford’s Boxing Club, kitchen, multipurpose spaces for rentals, two offices, and a playground. 
Annual operating costs for TCCC are estimated to be ~$35K and offset by rental revenue which in FY22 was $8K.  

 
In September 2022, HPC was closed due to positive tests for mold and recommendation to conduct mold 

remediation after repairs. Required remediation and repairs include asbestos abatement, roof, and HVAC replacement at a 
staff estimated cost of more than $200K. There is no funding in the FY23 budget for this work; contingency funding or fund 
balance could be used. The new Herman Park Center will cost significantly more than the $11M approved by Council as 
discussed with Council on October 17, 2022.  

 
In October 2022, P&R staff at HPC relocated to the Senior House next door and senior programs were relocated to 

available space in TCCC along with the HPC pottery classes. TCCC needs ~$55K of roof repairs and interior painting due 
to leaks from rain. If programs or rentals other than Ashford boxing will be conducted at TCCC, the roof repairs and interior 
painting should be done.   

 
Staff recommended that Council agree to close HPC until a new HPC is built and authorize staff to seek grant 

funding for demolition of the old HPC and purchase of a new HPC. Any grant matching fund requirements will be brought 
to Council for approval. 

 
Staff recommended that Council either approve or deny funding for TCCC roof repairs and interior painting. If 

funding for roof repairs is not approved, programs and rentals in the recreation room should not be offered; Ashford boxing 
and pottery classes could be offered. Additionally, if funding for repairs is not approved, the sale or demolition of the 
building should be considered. 

 
Russell Stephens, Assistant Director of the Parks and Recreation Department shared information with council 

regarding the programming and condition of the TC Coley building and the condition of the Herman Park Center.  
 

Commission on Community
Relations and Development

 Our Mission
To act as an advisory body to the City Council:

To enhance community
har mony.

Go above and beyond
to pr omote awar eness
of Goldsbor o’s gr ow ing

multicultur alism.

Facilitate community
dialogue by having

meetings and
community events

thr oughout
neighbor hoods.

Or ganize coalitions to
listen to community
issues and concer ns.

The Council appointed
Commission on

Community Relations
and Development w ill
also ser ve as a citizen
input mechanism in an
advisor y capacity to
the City Council for

pr ogr ams funded
thr ough Community
Development Block
Gr ant (CDBG) and
HOME Investment

Par tner ship (HOME)
gr ant funds.

Our Members

We are a diverse group of 11 members with a like passion
to serve our community.

 Two of our  member s that ser ve as liaisons ar e our  depar tment
Dir ector , Felecia Williams and our  City Councilmember ,
Hiawatha Jones.

 The body of advisor s have backgr ounds in:

 Social Serv ices

 Education

 Military

 Small Business Owner

 NPO

 Correctional Facility Staff

 Insurance Broker

 2022 Accomplishments
By-Laws have been revised:

Align with local government.

Define how we will use subcommittees if needed.

Actively involved in CBDG action plan and have aw.i.p timeline for next year.

Attending Council Meetings to stay connected to current action items.

Reached out to local Council, Mayor and City Manager individually to see how we
can communicate and support their vision.

Held community events such as Suicide Prevention vigil at City Hall steps.

Sharing community affairs such as Literacy Connection Community Fair, World
Mental Health Day, National Night Out, Christmas Parade, Conversation for Black
Women, MLK celebration and more.

Bringing in Subject Matter Experts to form ADHOC committees as needed.

Develop a framework for affordable housing working within HUD & ARP guidelines.

Promoting more inclusiveness by reaching out to community leaders and
leveraging local resources such as Chamber of Commerce and church leaders.

What does 2023 look like?

We will have clear, accurate and
measurable goals in 2023

Lean in and connect with the
community on several levels; with

the goal to gain trust, get more
feedback and more participation in
surveys as well as assure as much as
possible everyone is fully informed

on current happenings and how they
can share their voice and leverage

economic opportunities.

Cultural Fair Community poster and essay
contests at local schools.

More collaborations with Seymour
Johnson AFB such as MLK day and
learning how they play a role in

affordable housing.

Having high level professionals
coming to open meetings to present

in key initiatives.

Assure we as a unit are fully aware
of local government and how they

work.

Continue to learn and utilize best
practices while working together
and communicating issues to the

communities.

Assure there is a clear path of
communication between the

communities and council.
As much as possible make sure each
diverse set has their voice heard.

Work to stay ahead of potential
issues that can have a negative

impact on our city.

Thank the City Council, City
Manager and the Mayor for
trusting us and allowing us

latitude to continue to serve
the communities and City of

Goldsboro.



6 of 16 
 

Council discussed the recommendations.  
 
Councilwoman Matthews made a motion to approve up to $55,000 for roofing and interior painting of the TC Coley 

building. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried.  
 
Councilman Broadaway made a motion to close Herman Park Center until a new Herman Park Center is built and 

authorize staff to seek grant funding for demolition of the old Herman Park Center and purchase of a new Herman Park 
Center. The motion was seconded by Councilman Batts.  After Council discussed asbestos abatement and contractors the 
motion passed unanimously.  

 
Boards and Commissions Vacancy Discussion. Laura Getz, City Clerk, provided an update to Council regarding 

Boards and Commissions vacancies. Council will discuss the vacancies at the next meeting and make recommendations for 
approval at the December 19, 2022 Council meeting.  

 
Consent Agenda Review. Items I - P on the consent agenda were reviewed. Further discussion included the 

following: 
 
Item I, Operating Budget Amendment FY22-23. Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director shared there is an error 

budget ordinance had an error in the ordinance. The amount under Transfers, should be a minus $266,000. The ordinance 
will be amended as discussed.  

 
Councilman Gaylor made a motion to amend the agenda relocating consent agenda Item I to Items Requiring 

Individual Action and placed after Item H, the discussion on the golf carts.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Polack. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem Polack, Councilmembers Broadaway, Matthews, Gaylor and Batts voted in favor of 
the motion.  Councilwoman Jones did not vote, however, pursuant to NCGS G.S. 160A-75, Councilwoman Jones vote 
would be considered an affirmative vote.  The motion passed. 

 
The meeting recessed at 6:43 p.m. 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on November 21, 2022. 
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Greg Batts  
 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney  
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Laura Getz, City Clerk 

  
Rev. David Elliott with St. James AME Zion Church provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Approval of Minutes.  Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and 
Regular Meeting of November 7, 2022. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.  

 
Councilwoman Jones made a motion to approve the Minutes of the Joint Meeting of the Goldsboro City Council, 

Wayne County Commissioners and Local Municipalities November 1, 2022. The motion was seconded by Councilman 
Batts. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem Polack, Councilwoman Jones, Councilman Broadaway, Councilman Gaylor and 
Councilman Batts voted for the motion. Councilwoman Matthews voted against the motion. The motion passed 6:1.   

 
Presentations. 
Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Wilton T. Bailey as an Employee of The City of 

Goldsboro for More Than 24 Years. Resolution Adopted. Wilton “Thomas” Bailey retires on December 1, 2022 as a 
Warrants Police Officer, with more than 24 years of service with the City of Goldsboro Police Department. Thomas began 
his career on September 9, 1998 as a Police Officer with the Goldsboro Police Department. On October 7, 2007, Thomas 
resigned as a Police Officer with the Goldsboro Police Department. On January 2, 2008, Thomas was reinstated as a Police 
Officer with the Goldsboro Police Department. On February 23, 2011, Thomas was transferred to a Warrants Police Officer 



7 of 16 
 

with the Goldsboro Police Department. On December 5, 2018, Thomas was promoted to Interim Police Corporal with the 
Goldsboro Police Department. On September 23, 2020, Thomas returned to a Warrants Police Officer with the Goldsboro 
Police Department, where he has served until his retirement. Thomas has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient 
public servant who has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro. 
The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, City employees, and the 
citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Thomas Bailey their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service 
rendered by him to the City over the years, and express to Thomas our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, 
and good health in his future endeavors. 

 
This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and effect 
from and after this 21st day of November, 2022. 

 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Polack to accept the current resolution as was read. The motion was seconded 

by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.  Council adopted the following entitled Resolution. 
 

“RESOLUTION NO. 2022-108 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY 
WILTON T. BAILEY AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 24 YEARS” 

 
Public Hearings.  
HOME ARP Funding. Public Hearing Held. Jeff Rosenberg with WBD presented the following information:  

 

  

  

  

GoldsboroHome-ARP

AllocationPlanningandPublic Participation

Agenda
• HOME-ARP Overview

• Project Timeline

• AllocationPlanning Process

• Agency Consultation

• COAPros and Cons

• Public Participation

2

HOME-ARP Overview

• $5billion forhomelessness assistanceandassistance to other vulnerable
populations to:

• Providecapital investment forpermanentrental housing, upgrade available stock of
shelter to include non-congregate shelter, andprovide tenant-based rental assistance
andsupportive services

3

Eligible Uses

AffordableRenta lHous ing

Tenant-BasedRenta lAss istance

Suppor�ve Services

Non-congregate Shelters

Qualifying Popula�ons (QPs)

Homeless (McKinney Act defini�onat 24 CFR 91.5)

At-ri skof homelessness (McKinney Act defini�onat 24 CFR 91.5)

Fleeing/Attemp�ng to Flee Domes�c Violence, Da�ng Violence, Sexual
Assaul t, Sta lking, or HumanTrafficking

OtherPopula�onswhere ass istance wouldPrevent the fami ly’s
homelessness ;or Serve those with the Greatest Riskof Hous ing Instabi l i ty

ProjectTimeline

*HUD requires thatthepublic has 15 days to comment on theAllocationPlan in it’sdevelopment phase. This includes one
required in-person hearing, taking place on 11/21 and a virtual option. All public comments will be recorded and addressed

in the Allocation Plan.

Public Hearing
11/21

4

Virtual Public Comment Period*
11/21-12/5

CityCouncil Selects
Allocation

12/5

AllocationPlanReviewed by
CityCouncil & Finalized

12/19/2022

SubmitAllocationPlanto HUD
12/30

AllocationPlanningProcess

Compile
OrganizationList

Outreach Agency
Consultation Follow-Ups Allocation

Planning

The goalof AllocationPlanningis to;
• Address needs and gaps that currently exist in Goldsbor o’sprovisioning of services to address homelessness
• Gauge opinions on how to maximize local impact with the federal funding via projects
• Prioritize eligible projects by relativeimportance

Public
Participation

5

AgencyConsultation

25+ local agencies were invited to attend a Working Group Session. 21 individuals were consulted and interviewed.

Ongoingprojects in Goldsboro;
• Pre-packaged meals forthe homeless
• Career Resources (including a clothing

center for work clothing)
• Encouraging landlords to rent to

Veterans
• Mental health services for the

homeless
• Emergency housing vouchers
• Rental and utilities assistance
• Laundry Services
• Non-congregate shelter provisioning

6

Agency/Org Consulted Type of Agency/Org
Greene Lamp Homeless Service, Rental Assistance Provider

Warm Body Warm Soul Homeless Suppor�ve Service provider

Volunteers of America Homeless / Veterans Supportive Service provider

Habitat for Humanity Home Ownership transi�on facilitator

United Way of Wayne County Homeless Suppor�ve Service provider

4 Day Movement Homeless Suppor�ve Service provider

WAGES (Wayne Action Group for Economic Solvency) Homeless Suppor�ve Service provider

Mirakal’s Love for Lives (MLFL, Inc.) Homeless Suppor�ve Service provider

Eastpointe Homeless Suppor�ve Service provider

Nu Hope Village Homeless Suppor�ve Service provider

Goldsboro Fire Department General Services

Laundry Love Goldsboro Homeless Suppor�ve Service provider

Tommy’s Found ation Homeless Suppor�ve Service provider

COA Pros and Cons
Course of Action Description Pros Cons

COA 1:Needand Gap Based
Prioritization

Splits funding between 5
organizations based on
survey-basedprioritization of
perceived community needs

• All needs and eligible expenses
will be addressed,with an
emphasis on thehighest-ranked •

priorities
• Moreorganizations granted

funds

Highadministrative burden
• Potential for duplication of

efforts

COA 2:Feasibility/Availability

Splits funding between 5
organizations based on their
presentation,organization,
and deliveryof projectgoals

• Opportunities giventoseveral
organizations

• All needs and eligible expenses
will be addressed

• Highadministrative burden
• Potential for duplication of

efforts
• Miniscule amountof funding

foreach project

COA 3:ProvenSuccess

Funds a small number of
projects/ organizations that
have a proventrack recordof
success in theGoldsboro
community

• Low administrative burden
• Morefunds toeach selected

organization
• Higher potential forimpact with

selected projects

• Only some community needs
will be addressed

• Lack of quantifiable
goals/results regarding
housing

The three COAs were selected based on a combination of independent research and agency consultation.

8

RecommendedAllocations

3 different courses of action have been recommended—Each is based on a particular investment ideology

Total Funding Allocation: $907,913
Risk Scale

9

Allocation I deologies
Survey-Based Feasibility / Availability Proven Success

Overseeing Agency Project Title Eligible Expense
Category

Qualifying
Populations

Targeted

Proven Success Course of Action #1
Funding Amount

Course of Action #2
Funding Amount

Course of Action #3
Funding Amount

4 Day Movement Affordable housing and
Suppor�ve Servic es
Enhancement

Affordable Housing,
Suppor�ve Servic es

All qualifying
Pops

Manages and allocates $150K
/ year for various programs

$100,000.00 $150,000.00 $450,000.00

WAGES Suppor�ve Servic es
Enhancement #2

Suppor�ve Servic es All qualifying
Pops

HHS 2021 grant recipient for
Early Head Start Servic es for
5,100 infants and families

$100,000.00 $125,000.00 $450,000.00

MLFL Restoration of Hope
Village

Non-Congregate Shelter,
Suppor�ve Servic es

All qualifying
Pops

N/A; Raised $500Kfor
project thus far

$250,000.00 $275,000.00 $-

Greene Lamp Tenant Based Rental
Assistance Program

TBRA Homeless Ameri Corps grant program,
CSBG Program, WIOA
Workforce grant program

$200,000.00 $100,000.00 $-

Nu Hope Village Ivy Court - Tiny Homes Non-Congregate Shelter All qualifying
Pops; Veteran
Focus

Created 6 permanent
veteran homes w/ 2019
HUD-VASH voucher funding

$250,000.00 $250,000.00 $-

Total: $900,000.00 $900,000.00 $900,000.00



8 of 16 

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. The following people spoke: 

1. Edward Davis, General Manager at Hampton Inn and Best Western Hotel, shared concerns regarding
homeless issues at the hotels.

2. Anthony Goodson, Goldsboro Housing Authority, shared information regarding the Housing Authority and
the funding available to assist the homeless through the allocation of HOME ARP funds.

3. D.J. Coles, 4 Day Movement, shared comments and concerns regarding homelessness. He also shared
information on The Portal and other resources for the homeless.

4. Sherry Archibald, United Way Director, shared support for the 4 Day Movement.
5. Jennifer Weir shared comments about a proposal entitled “A Collective Way”.

i. Councilwoman Jones requested further information from D.J. Coles about the unhoused living in
Goldsboro from other cities.

6. Janice Johnson shared comments regarding Nu-Hope Community Center concept. Ms. Robertson and Mr.
Williamson shared how the Nu-Hope Center has helped them. Mr. Artis shared information regarding his
support of the proposed tiny house project.

7. Thomas Rice, Executive Director of MLFL and David Simmons shared comments regarding the Restoration
of Hope Village and the homeless.

i. Councilwoman Jones requested a copy of the strategic plan for the Restoration of Hope Village.
8. John Strickland shared comments about the proposed HUD funds for the homeless regarding “A Collective

Way” and the homeless issues in Goldsboro.
9. Edward Davis General Manager at Hampton Inn and Best Western Hotel asked about the screening process,

No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

Jeff Rosenberg discussed the timeline of allocation of the funds. 

SU-13-22 Accessory Dwelling – East side of W. New Hope Rd., located between the intersection of Cuyler Best 
Rd. and S. Harding Dr. Public Hearing Held and Findings Adopted.  After being properly sworn in, Austin Brinkley, 
Assistant Planning Director shared the following information. 

ADDRESS: 523 W. New Hope Rd.  
PARCEL #: 3610902529 
PROPERTY OWNER/APPLICANT: Kenneth & Dixie Ellis 

The applicant requests a Special Use Permit to convert an existing 24x30 accessory structure into an accessory dwelling, the 
applicant is also proposing to add a 10x22 addition to the existing structure, which would result in a 24x40 structure to be 
utilized as an accessory dwelling. The accessory dwelling proposed is intended to be used as a residence by the applicant’s 
daughter. The property is located in the Residential 16 Zoning District. The Residential 16 district is established to 
accommodate low density, single-family residential uses and to prohibit all activities of a commercial nature.   

According to the City’s Unified Development Code, Table 5.4 Permitted Uses and Section 5.5.4 Special Use Specific 
Regulations, Accessory Dwellings & Apartments are permitted as a Special Use in the Residential 16 district, provided City 
Council votes to issue the permit.  

Frontage: 185.8 ft.   
Area: 0.9 acres 
Zoning:   Residential 16 (R-16)  
Existing Use: Residential Accessory Structure 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Medium-Density Residential land use designation. This designation 
was given based off of existing residential development patterns, constraints to development, and the location of 
infrastructure. The desired development density for the Medium-Density Residential land use designation is 4.5 units per 
acre. Residential 16 is a corresponding zoning district for the Medium-Density Residential designation. 

According to the Unified Development Ordinance, a Special Use Permit is required to convert the existing accessory 
structure into an accessory dwelling. The structure will be required to meet all applicable North Carolina State Building 
Code Requirements as it undergoes conversion. The proposed accessory dwelling will not exceed 40% of the livable area of 
the principal structure nor will it exceed 1,100 square feet. There is adequate parking for the accessory dwelling in the 
existing driveway.  

PublicParticipation

A public hearing is required by HUD. Feedback has alreadybeen collected from 25+ communitymembersthat were
consulted as part of the Agency Consultation requirement.

Stage Description
Inform Public Hearing will be formally announced to the public by November 8, 2022

Date announcedvia;
• City Calendar
• Facebook, Twitter, Newsletter
• City Council Meeting

Collect The public hearing will take place at the Council meeting on November 21, 2022. An online form
will be available during that time for participants to opt to submit their feedback virtually.

Address City feedbackto be presented via;
• City Website
• Facebook

Develop Input public feedback and comments into the Allocation Plan draft.

Distribute The finalized Allocation Plan will be disseminated on the City website. There is
opportunity here for a series of social media posts to accompany it.

Questions?



9 of 16 
 

The property was properly posted, and adjacent property owners were notified by Certified Mail that a Public Hearing 
would take place on November 21, 2022. 

City water and sewer are available to serve the site. The site is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area.  

Staff has distributed this proposed special use permit to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson Air Force 
Base and NCDOT. There were no comments or concerns. 

Planning: Has no comments or concerns. 

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

Council entered into deliberation and voted on each of the four findings in order to determine whether or not the Special Use 
Permit shall be issued. Council shall sign the Order to Approve or Deny, that reflects the results of the hearing and 
deliberation at the December 5, 2022, City Council meeting. 

1. Councilman Broadaway made a motion that the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety. The 
motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack and unanimously carried.   

2. Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion that the use will not substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or 
abutting property. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.   

3. Councilman Batts made a motion that the use will be in harmony with existing development and uses within the 
area in which it is located. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried.  

4. Councilman Batts made a motion that the use will be in general conformity with the City of Goldsboro 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.   

SU-14-22 Fly Buy Auto, LLC. (Used Car Sales) – Northeast side of US Hwy 70 E (Warren Supply). Public 
Hearing Held and Findings Adopted. Austin Brinkley, Assistant Planning Director shared the following information. 

ADDRESS: 4209 US Hwy 70 East 
PARCEL #: 3528148081 
PROPERTY OWNER: David Edward Warren 
APPLICANT: Kevin Aycock (Fly Buy Auto, LLC) 
 

The applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the establishment of a Used Car Sales Lot, located in the Airport Business 
Zoning District. The Airport Business district is established to accommodate highway-oriented retail and commercial uses 
which generally serve the entire City and nonresident traffic in the Accident Potential Zone (APZ) of the Seymour Johnson 
Air Force Base. The district is intended to allow dispersed low intensity commercial uses and to provide addition review for 
uses that have the potential to concentrate people within the APZ.  

According to the City’s Unified Development Code, Automobile Sales Used, no service or repair, is permitted only after 
obtaining a Special Use Permit from Goldsboro City Council. 

Frontage: 200 ft.   
Area: 1.28 acres 
Zoning:   Airport Business  
 

Property currently contains Warren Supply, a small engine repair service.   
 
The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Commercial land use designation. This designation puts a future 
emphasis on in-fill development. The desired development density for the Commercial land use designation is 10,000 
square feet of building per acre. The Airport Business Zoning District is listed as a corresponding district for the 
Commercial land use designation.  

This Used Car Sales business is proposing to only have 1 employee working during business hours and to only have a small 
inventory of vehicles for sale. Approval criteria for Automobile Sales Used requiring a special use permit from Goldsboro 
City Council are as follows: 

A type A buffer yard is required. Includes a buffer that is 10’ in width.  

Access to the site will be off of US Hwy 70 E.  

Parking requirements are 1 space per employee plus 5 customer spaces. A minimum of 6 parking spaces are required, 
parking must be paved. No vehicles for sale shall be parked within 20 feet of any buffer area. 

Outdoor lighting is required for security. A lighting plan will be required with site plan submittal. 

Trash collection areas shall be screened by a wall, opaque fence, or landscaping from public view.  

No parking of used vehicles or customer vehicles shall be allowed within the required street yard landscaped area. A loading 
area no less than 20x50 feet shall be provided unless no vehicles are delivered by car carrier. All vehicular display areas 
shall be improved with paving and curb and gutter.  

The property was properly posted, and adjacent property owners were notified by Certified Mail that a Public Hearing 
would take place on November 21, 2022. 



10 of 16 
 

Staff has distributed this proposed special use permit to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson Air Force 
Base and NCDOT. During this review process Seymour Johnson indicated that they have already identified the property as 
incompatible based on the previous land use, this proposed special use would not cause the property to be viewed as 
creating a more incompatible situation and SJAFB does not have any concerns with the proposal due to this fact. They base 
this determination off a FAR (Floor Area Ratio) calculation. The calculation is the tax record square footage of existing 
structures divided by the total acreage. This property’s FAR is 0.18, based on SJAFB the recommended allowable FAR for 
this would be 0.14.  

City water and sewer lines are available to serve the property. The property is not within a Special Flood Hazard Area.  

Planning staff has no comment at this time after review of the concept plan, Planning will ensure all requirements for 
development are met during site plan review, if the Special Use is approved.   

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

Council entered into deliberation and voted on each of the four findings in order to determine whether or not the Special Use 
Permit shall be issued. Council shall sign the Order to Approve or Deny, that reflects the results of the hearing and 
deliberation at the December 5, 2022, City Council meeting. 

1. Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion that the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety. The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.   

2. Councilwoman Jones made a motion that the use will not substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or 
abutting property. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem Polack, 
Councilmembers Broadaway, Matthews, Gaylor and Batts voted in favor of the motion.  Councilwoman Jones did 
not vote, however, pursuant to NCGS G.S. 160A-75, Councilwoman Jones vote would be considered an 
affirmative vote.  The motion passed. 

3. Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion that the use will be in harmony with existing development and uses within 
the area in which it is located. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.  

4. Councilman Batts made a motion that the use will be in general conformity with the City of Goldsboro 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.   

SU-15-22 C.A.L.M. Properties & Investments, LLC (Triplex) – Corner of Wayne Ave. and Sycamore St. Public 
Hearing Held and Findings Adopted. Austin Brinkley, Assistant Planning Director shared the following information. 

ADDRESS: 235 Wayne Ave. 
PARCEL #: 2599818199 
PROPERTY OWNER/APPLICANT: C.A.L.M. Properties & Investments, LLC 
 

The applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the establishment of a triplex (multi-family 3 or more units), located in the 
Residential 6 Zoning District. The Residential 6 district is established to accommodate both single and multi-family 
residential uses and to prohibit all activities of a commercial nature, except certain home occupations. Multi-family 
dwellings shall have 6,000 sq feet of land area for the first unit and a additional 2,000 square feet for each additional unit.  

According to the City’s Unified Development Code, Multi-Family (3 or more units) is permitted only after obtaining a 
Special Use Permit from Goldsboro City Council. 

Frontage: 88 ft Wayne Ave, 120 ft Sycamore St.   
Area: 0.24 acres 
Density:  Maximum of 3 units allowed 
Zoning:   Residential 6  
 
Existing Use: Vacant 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the High-Density Residential land use designation. This designation was 
given based off of existing residential development patterns, constraints to development, and the location of infrastructure. 
The desired development density for the High-Density Residential land use designation is 8.5 units per acre. Residential 6 is 
a corresponding zoning district for the High-Density Residential designation. 

The proposed 3 units are in harmony with the desired density for the High-Density Residential designation.  

The following items listed below are required to be shown on the formal Site Plan review for this proposed Special Use, if 
approved: 

A type A buffer yard is required. Includes a buffer that is 10’ in width. 

A minimum of six parking spaces is required (2 per unit). Administrative modification of 20% granted to allow for this. 
Each unit provides a garage with adequate vehicle parking space as well as providing adequate space in each unit’s 
respective driveway.  

The property was properly posted, and adjacent property owners were notified by Certified Mail that a Public Hearing 
would take place on November 21, 2022. 

Staff has distributed this proposed special use permit to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson Air Force 
Base and NCDOT. During this review process Seymour Johnson indicated that they have no comments or concerns. 



11 of 16 
 

The original site plan showed the multi-family units to have access off of Wayne Ave. Staff requested that this be 
redesigned to have the units be served off of Sycamore St. Due to the size of the lot, this request was unable to be made but 
the proposal is still compliant with the City of Goldsboro UDO.  

There were concerns over the location of the proposed utility lines being located under the driveway/parking areas of the 
triplex. The lines were relocated in the revised plan and Engineering is satisfied with the proposed location. 

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. The following person spoke after being properly sworn in:  

1. Stephanie Isler shared the following comments: we live at 231 Wayne Avenue which is next to this property 
Mr. Tim was speaking about and we need to know is he trying to get a little more property on our side or 
what. We need to find out what the line is to see if whatever he needs is not going to be bothering our side of 
our property. Mayor Ham asked is she is wanting to know where the property line is. Ms. Isler said that is 
correct. Mr. Brinkley asked do you want to know where the property line is?  Ms. Isler said yes, because we 
live at 231 and I see on the back of this paper it says 233 or 235. Is that two pieces of property in one corner? 
Mr. Brinkley stated that is one parcel. He showed the boundary line of the property. He shared they will have 
to develop within the boundary of that property and will also have to meet the setback requirements, so they 
are not going to be able to encroach onto your property. They are going to have to stay within the boundary of 
that shown on your ariel image.  

 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

Council entered into deliberation and voted on each of the four findings in order to determine whether or not the Special Use 
Permit shall be issued. Council shall sign the Order to Approve or Deny, that reflects the results of the hearing and 
deliberation at the December 5, 2022, City Council meeting. 

1. Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion that the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety. The 
motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried.   

2. Councilwoman Jones made a motion that the use will not substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or 
abutting property. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack and unanimously carried.   

3. Councilman Broadaway made a motion that the use will be in harmony with existing development and uses 
within the area in which it is located. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.  

4. Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to agree that the use will be in general conformity with the City of 
Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously 
carried.   

 
Public Comment Period. Mayor Ham opened the public comment period. The following people spoke:  

1. Sharita Oates, Director of Administration with the Goldsboro Housing Authority shared information 
regarding a basketball tournament on January 13-15, 2023 sponsored by the Goldsboro Housing Authority.   

2. Lashonda Perkins shared information regarding nonprofit organization funding concerns and the requirements 
that all nonprofit organizations are required to have workers compensation insurance. She asked council to 
reconsider the NPO workers compensation waiver decision and to review current processes currently in place.   
 
Councilwoman Matthews made a motion that the board reconsider their decision and waive the workers comp 
for those organizations who do not have three or more employees based on the criteria set forth by the state. 
The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack. Councilwoman Matthews shared her reason for asking 
council to reconsider is because some nonprofits have been told the requirement could be waived by city staff. 
Council discussed the issue of workers compensation. City Manager Salmon, Octavius Murphy, Assistant to 
the City Manager and City Attorney Lawrence shared information regarding the insurance requirements. 
 
Councilman Gaylor stated he feels the risk is too large given the amount of money being discussed and 
believes there might be another financial solution. Councilman Gaylor asked that we table the discussion for 
the next meeting in an attempt that we might be able to find a separate solution that puts us in a place we can 
keep our word and manage the risk to the city. Councilwoman Matthews withdrew her motion. Mayor Pro 
Tem Polack seconded the motion to table the item. Councilwoman Matthews shared the initial application 
was misleading. The motion was passed unanimously.    

 
No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Tim Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  All 

items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote. 
During the adoption of the agenda, Item H, Purchase of Lithium Powered Golf Carts and Upgrades to Golf Cart Storage 
Building was moved to Items Requiring Individual Action.  During the Consent Agenda Review, Item I was moved to Items 
Requiring Individual Action. Councilman Gaylor moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items J - P be approved as 
recommended by the City Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack and a roll call vote 
resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion. 

 



12 of 16 
 

The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 
Authorization of sale of jointly owned property for 412 E. Walnut Street to Oliver Design Group, LLC. 

Resolution Adopted.  Wayne County has requested concurrence by the City Council for jointly owned city/county-owned 
property.  The County conducted the sale under the upset bid process (NCGS §160A-269), and approved at the September 
20, 2022 commissioners meeting.   

 
Buyer:  Oliver Design Group, LLC 
Sales Price: $5,000.00 
 
412 E. Walnut Street 
Tax Value:  $6,210.00       Pin #: 3509057190 
 

It was recommended that the City Council, by motion, adopt following entitled resolution declaring the property surplus and 
authorizing City officials to execute instruments necessary to transfer ownership for 412 E. Walnut Street to Oliver Design 
Group, LLC.  Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor/Polack (7 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-109 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY UNDER NCGS § 
160A-269” 

 
Edward Byrne Justice Grant. Resolution Adopted. US Dept. of Justice: Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 

Assistance Grant (JAG) Formula Program:  Local Solicitation.  
 

The Goldsboro Police Department has been awarded Federal grant funds from the 2022 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 
Assistance Grant (JAG).  On October 17, 2022, Council adopted a Resolution allowing the Goldsboro Police Department to 
apply for this grant.  The grant was awarded on November 01, 2022. 

 
The grant was approved for the Goldsboro Police Department to purchase patrol pistols, informational technology 
equipment, and an EyeDetect instrument in the amount of $23,574.00 to ensure quality law enforcement services to the City 
of Goldsboro.  

 
It was recommended that the following entitled resolution be adopted authorizing the Goldsboro Police Department and 
Goldsboro City Manager to accept the award for the 2022 JAG Funds in the amount of $23,574.00 and authorize City 
officials to execute documents required for the award. Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor/Polack (7 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-110 “A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE 2022 EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE 
ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) APPLICATION” 

 
Ordinance Amendment – “Administrative Code”. Ordinance Adopted. City of Goldsboro Code of Ordinances 

Title III Chapter 33. Police and Fire Departments. contains regulations which set out the responsibilities of the Police and 
Fire Departments.   

 
North Carolina General Statute 160A-282 authorizes a city by ordinance to provide for the organization of an auxiliary 
police department made up of volunteer members. 

 
Sworn officers duly appointed and sworn as auxiliary will be utilized to supplement the operations of full-time sworn 
officers in a manner consistent with North Carolina law.  An auxiliary police officer is a limited-service, part-time, sworn 
position, which functions as a police officer when assigned to a specific division, unit, section, function, or assignment. 

 
Auxiliary officers have all the authority of a full-time law enforcement officer and are commissioned to act as such.  
Auxiliary police officers have full powers of arrest and will enforce all applicable laws, using the same equipment in the 
same manner as full-time police officers. Auxiliary police officers will carry firearms on-duty and may carry concealed 
firearms off-duty.  

 
Auxiliary police officers are bonded with the same coverage of full-time police officers, and they are provided identical 
coverage protection as that of a full-time police officer. The Chief of Police, in conjunction with City of Goldsboro City 
Manager and Human Resources, will establish the rate of compensation for auxiliary police officers while they are 
performing assigned duties. Worker’s compensation will be provided as outlined in applicable regulations. Life insurance or 
any other benefits are not provided. 

 
The Police Department will ensure that the personnel selected to serve as auxiliary police officers meet the same standards 
as full-time, commissioned police officers and provide the same level of service to the community. 

 
The term “auxiliary” shall refer to and mean the same as the term “reserve”. 

 
Based on the above, staff feels it necessary to update the language of the City Ordinance to provide for the organization of 
an auxiliary police department.  The attached ordinance amendment would provide for an auxiliary police department under 
the current Police Department services in regards to the “Administrative Code”. 



13 of 16 
 

 
It was recommended that Council accept the staff’s recommendation and adopt the following entitled amendment changing 
the “Administration Code” as indicated above. Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor/Polack (7 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-58 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 33 ENTITLED "POLICE AND FIRE 
DEPARTMENTS” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 
Goldsboro Christmas Parade – Temporary Street Closure. Approved.  The annual Goldsboro Christmas Parade is 

one of the many local traditions helping to usher the holiday season into the Goldsboro area.  The parade is organized, 
coordinated, and sponsored by the Wayne County Chamber of Commerce.   

 
The street closing request for Saturday, December 3, 2022 is as follows: 

 
South on Center Street beginning at Ash Street to Pine Street; going around the traffic circle heading north on Center Street 
back to Ash Street, ending at Ash Street. 

  
Oak Street between James Street and William Street; Vine Street between Center Street and William Street; Beech Street 
between John Street and William Street; and Center Street from Oak and Ash Street. 

  
Center Street from Holly Street to Ash Street; and John Street from Holly Street to Ash Street.  

 
James Street from Oak Street to Ash Street; Ash Street from James Street to John Street; Mulberry Street from James Street 
to John Street; Walnut Street from James Street to John Street; Chestnut Street from James Street to John Street; Spruce 
Street from James Street to John Street; Pine Street from James Street to John Street; and Center Street at Elm Street.   

 
No parallel parking on Center Street from Pine Street to Ash Street. 

 
The time requested for the street closing is from 8:00am to 8:00pm.  Police have indicated that traffic will be restricted from 
8:00am until 3:30am and all traffic stopped at 3:30am.  The actual parade will begin at 4:00pm and end at approximately 
7:00pm. 

 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be addressed:  

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments and Public Works Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of the 

Event. 
 

Staff recommended that Council grant the requested temporary street closures of the sections of Pine Street, Spruce Street, 
Center Street, Walnut Street, John Street, Mulberry Street, Ash Street, James Street, Chestnut Street, Oak Street, Vine 
Street, and Beech Street for the Goldsboro Christmas Parade route and staging area from 8:00am to 8:00pm on Saturday, 
December 3, 2022, as stated above.  Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor/Polack (7 Ayes) 

 
Set Public Hearing - Non-Contiguous Annexation Petition – Harry and Mollie, LLC. (Lot 12) - Located on the 

north side of N.C. Secondary Road No. 1758 off E. US Hwy. 70 between N. Oak Forest Rd. and E. Ash St. Ext. Public 
Hearing Scheduled.  

 
Wayne Co. Tax Parcel ID#:  3519-90-5459 (Portion) 
Acreage:  126,897 sq. ft. or 2.913 acres 
 

The City Council, at their meeting on November 7, 2022, requested that the City Clerk examine the subject voluntary 
annexation petition for sufficiency.   

 
On November 14, 2022, the City Clerk completed the examination and determined that the petition is sufficient.  
Sufficiency indicates that the proposed area for annexation meets the standards for noncontiguous annexation as specified in 
G.S. 160A-58.1 Petition for annexation; standards are as follows: 

 
1. The nearest point on the proposed satellite corporate limits must be not more than three miles from the primary 

corporate limits of the annexing city; 
2. No point on the proposed satellite corporate limits may be closer to the primary corporate limits of another city 

than to the primary corporate limits of the annexing city; 
3. The area must be situated that the annexing city will be able to provide the same services within the proposed 

satellite corporate limits that it provides within its primary corporate limits; 
4. The area within the proposed satellite corporate limits, when added to the area within all other satellite corporate 

limits, may not exceed 10% of the area within the primary corporate limits of the annexing city. 
 

Pursuant to G. S. 160A-58.2, Council shall fix a date for a public hearing on the annexation once the petition is considered 
sufficient by the City Clerk. 



14 of 16 
 

 
The Notice of Public Hearing would schedule December 5, 2022, as the date for the public hearing.  A report prepared by 
the Planning Department, in conjunction with other City departments, will be submitted to the Council on that date.  

 
Staff recommended that Council schedule a public hearing for the proposed voluntary annexation of Harry and Mollie, LLC. 
(Lot 12) for December 5, 2022. Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor/Polack (7 Ayes) 

 
Dissolving the Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Committee and Amending the City of Goldsboro Code of 

Ordinances. Ordinance Adopted.  The Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Committee has not meet due to a lack of a 
quorum for the past two years. The Parks and Recreation Director and Golf Director recommend that the Goldsboro 
Municipal Golf Course Committee be dissolved due to a lack of quorum/interest.   

 
Chapter 32 outlines and defines the functions of City Council advisory boards. 

 
Section 32.323 Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Committee defines the function of the Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course 
Committee.  

 
Section 32.324 Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission defines the function of the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Commission.  

 
Due to a lack of involvement on the Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Committee, staff recommend the committee be 
dissolved.  At the November 7, 2022 Council Meeting, City Manager Tim Salmon presented the recommendation to 
dissolve the Committee to Council; the recommendation was accepted.  

 
Due to the dissolution, any issue involving the Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course shall be addressed by the Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Commission. This requires that Chapter 32 of the Goldsboro City Ordinances be updated to reflect the 
dissolution of the Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Committee, and to update the duties of the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Commission. 

 
Staff recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Ordinance dissolving the Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course 
Committee and amending Chapter 32: Section 32.323 Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Committee removing the 
Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Committee from the Code, and Chapter 32: Section 32.224 Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Commission, updating the duties of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Gaylor/Polack (7 Ayes) 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-59 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 32 BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND 
DEPARTMENTS OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S CODE OF ORDINANCES” 
 

Departmental Monthly Reports. Accepted as Information.  The various departmental reports for October 2022 
were submitted for Council approval. It was recommended that Council accept the reports as information. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Gaylor/Polack (7 Ayes) 

 
End of Consent Agenda. 
 
Items Requiring Individual Action.  
Purchase of Lithium Powered Golf Carts and Upgrades to Golf Cart Storage Building. Resolution Adopted. 

The City of Goldsboro purchased gas powered E-Z-GO golf carts in 2018.  Due to wear and tear it is now time to replace 
the golf carts.  Council discussed at its November 7, 2022 meeting replacement options and decided it would replace 
existing gas golf carts with lithium powered golf carts.   

 
§143-129(e)(3) grants the City authority to purchase through a competitive bidding group and E-Z-GO is the authorized 
distributor for Omnia Partners contract #R210201. The City is further authorized through §160A-265 to sell or dispose of 
personal property and §143-129.7 to purchase with trade-in of apparatus, supplies, materials and equipment. The 
cooperative contract cost per cart is $8,311.36. After trading in the current golf cart fleet, the city’s cost per cart will be 
$5,011.36.  The lithium powered golf carts have an expected delivery date of August 2023.  

 
A building upgrade will also be required to house the 50 lithium powered golf carts. This cost for the upgrade will not 
exceed $15,000. The resolution includes the amount for the 50 carts and the upgrade to house the carts. The total cost will 
not exceed $266,000.00. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the City Manager, Finance Director 
and City Clerk to (a) declare surplus the current City fleet of golf carts and authorize their use as trade-in value, (b) enter 
into a contract with E-Z-GO Division of Textron, Inc. for the purchase of 50 Lithium powered golf carts and (c) approve the 
upgrade for the golf cart storage building to house the 50 lithium golf carts.  The cost of the carts and cart storage upgrade 
will not exceed $266,000.00.  
 
Councilwoman Jones shared comments and concerns regarding the golf cart purchase. Council discussed the issue with Mr. 
Agbasi, Golf Course Director and City Manager Salmon. Councilman Broadaway made a motion to adopt the resolution to 



15 of 16 
 

purchase the carts and upgrade the storage facility. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack. Mayor Ham, 
Mayor Pro Tem Polack, Councilman Broadaway, Councilman Gaylor and Councilman Batts voted for the motion. 
Councilwoman Jones and Councilwoman Matthews voted against the motion. The motion passed 5:2.   
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-111 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF LITHIUM POWERED GOLF CARTS AND UPGRADING CART STORAGE 
BUILDING” 

 
Operating Budget Amendment FY22-23. Ordinance Adopted.  Council adopted the FY22-23 annual operating 

budget on June 20, 2022.  
 

Golf Cart Purchase 
Council was presented information by Mr. Obie Agbasi at the 9/19 and 11/7 Council meetings regarding the purchase of 50 
lithium powered golf carts.  At the 11/7 meeting it was discussed by the Manager that there were sufficient funds in the 
General Fund fund balance to support this capital outlay.  A resolution was presented earlier to award the purchase of the 
carts and declare the old carts surplus.  It is necessary to amend the General Fund budget to appropriate the expenditures for 
the purchase of the 50 golf carts and the improvements needed to the cart storage shed to accommodate the electric carts in 
the amount of $266,000, and this will be funded with a reduction in the contingency line item in the General Fund. 

 
Public Utilities Capital Outlay 
Council was presented information from Public Utilities Director, Mr. Robert Sherman, regarding upcoming Utility Fund 
projects that are insufficient in the total adopted budgeted funds due to current economic conditions.   

 
It is necessary to amend the operating budget and appropriate the expenditures so that staff may proceed with the 
procurement process.  The expenditures will be funded with a transfer from the Utilities Capital Reserve Fund in the amount 
of $712,289.48. 

       
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance to amend the FY22-23 Operating Budget for the 
General Fund and Utility Fund.  

 
Councilman Broadaway made a motion to adopt the ordinance to amend the FY22-23 Operating Budget for the General 
Fund and Utility Fund. The motion was seconded by Councilman Batts. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem Polack, Councilman 
Broadaway, Councilman Gaylor and Councilman Batts voted for the motion. Councilwoman Jones and Councilwoman 
Matthews voted against the motion. The motion passed 5:2.   
 
ORDINANCE 2022-60 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
FOR THE 2022-23 FISCAL YEAR” 

 
City Manager’s Report. Tim Salmon thanked the city clerk and city staff for putting together the 175th Anniversary 

Celebration at the Goldsboro Event Center this weekend. He also thanked Mr. David Weil and Judge Charles Gaylor for 
presenting the history of Goldsboro at the event. He shared the video of the event should be available on the website. 
He also shared Lights Up is tomorrow night from 5-8, Downtown. Jingle in the Park is December 2-3 at Herman Park 
Center and Parks and Recreation Department is coordinating the event. The Christmas Parade is December 3, Downtown 
and is coordinated by the Wayne County Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Salmon wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.  

 
Ceremonial Documents. 
Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Charles Ginn as an Employee of The City of 

Goldsboro for More Than 18 Years. Resolution Adopted. Charles Ginn retires on December 1, 2022 as a Stormwater 
Maintenance Supervisor, with more than 18 years of service, with the Goldsboro Public Works Department. Charles began 
his career on January 7, 2004 as a Utility Maintenance I with the Goldsboro Public Works Department. On May 25, 2005, 
Charles was promoted to Acting Motor Equipment Operator III with the Goldsboro Public Works Department. On October 
26, 2005, Charles was promoted to Motor Equipment Operator III with the Goldsboro Public Works Department. On 
August 1, 2007, Charles was reclassified to Equipment Operator III with the Goldsboro Public Works Department. On 
January 8, 2014, Charles was reclassified to Heavy Equipment Operator with the Goldsboro Public Works Department. On 
May 16, 2018, Charles was promoted to Interim Stormwater Maintenance Supervisor with the Goldsboro Public Works 
Department. On October 24, 2018, Charles was promoted to Stormwater Maintenance Supervisor with the Goldsboro Public 
Works Department, where he has served until his retirement. Charles has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient 
public servant who has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro. 
The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, City employees, and the 
citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Charles Ginn their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service 
rendered by him to the City over the years, and express to Charles our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, 
and good health in his future endeavors. 

 
This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and 

effect from and after this 21st day of November, 2022. 
 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Polack to adopt the retirement resolution. The motion was seconded by 

Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.  Council adopted the following entitled Resolution. 



tiO

v
i

y
y

Y
 
"

d

Y

0

w
 "" 

o
n

0
°

a0i .. 

U
 -°

C
x

U
0

xti
0

b
b

o
O

 -
d
  >

 

o
3

ani ° 
U

 '°
>

, ' '
y
t
w

U
0

a 
0

o
Y

d
0

O
U

t
i
 
.

c
o

U
  '

b

b
4
, - 

ti
3
 °

Y
'
 

c
o

 '

m
a
y

v
"
 
'=

 o -
0

o
v
 
!
/

i 
°
' 
'

Y
%

 
M

m
e") ,  '! 

C
IS

c
/i

co
i
 
-

I
o

o
F

i
i
 
•
}
+

 
(

1) 
x

o

C
O

E
n

 °' 

am
i °' " `

o
 ' ° 

ao 'c4
3

N
y

0
Y

N
c
n

A
y 

0
O

Q  
U

O
  

v
,
 
:
 
 

cd
O

0
 >

,- 

c4
3
 -

d
3

o
b

Y
 
`
 

0

n
 
.
>

.
 

c
d

0
O

am
i  ` 

O
y

x
 .

d
y
 
.
.

r
o
n

4
c
. " +

 
o

o
 =

 
4

4

o
w

c
n
 [ 

a
°>

 
ani

a
>i
 
 
-

d

IIZO
p

Y

bUD =° 
0
 ,

4
 ', 

U
. 
y
o

0
b

3
0
c
l
0

0
 
'^

 
a 

O
3

0YO
N

y
0

N
  

O

2
b
n

c
z

U
U

O
N

N
O

N
  

Y

c
z

00
w

ojn
o

 
0

0° ° 
o ' > 

t
iyroy

a
u

U
U

a4) 
4
" —

c
o

a 
o

, 
u
a
 

b
 °

 °
 

y
p, 

i 

am
i 

e

Y

F
 
+

q

O
o

y
y
 °

' 
O

i -

y
' . 

r
i
 
'

v
 
-

d
 +

*
, °

' 
0

y
a

o
n

r
^
 

y
 (

N
 
•

e
-

1
r
l

Q
%

 
a
s

m
O

c
o
 - ;.- 

o
W

Y
 (

' 
O

Y
Y

 
+

•

q (/
i

Y
Cyl '

N

U
xao. 

El0
 -

-
 0

0 ' 
3

0
0

O
N

O
r
n

O
O

s
s
7

U
c
6

Y
U

i- 
fT

, 
O

O
0

 >
>

 . 
Y

 
C

/ sem. 
U

Uff1rL` J
+

 
O

4
i

U
c 

N
v
 
'

G
3 

b
n

O
U

O
O

c
d

0
E

n
u

0
>

 
o

b
 .w

1
0

r,=
 

b
4

am
i   

O

0
U

a
/ 

Y

N
0

N
c 

C
f) 

y
 

r
'y

N
y
 
°

a
s

Y
C

i
w

C

c
o

IZ
I

co
n

a
s

0

U
 >

, 
m

0
C

n
o

0
>

 
u

w
U

U
0

U
3

3
0

a
x

u
0

O

o
c
a
 >

N
o

9> 
aoiMcli

o
y 

o
° 

0
3

o
U

C
3
 '

3ate+ •" • 
W

A
Q. 

t
-
 

Q, 
r
"n

ii
U

'
i' 

U

ci00

OO

x
Uclac
d

0c
o

0V
)
 

OU4
-4O

00OU

C
4

3010InUcnCl00Ui

Oc
d



C









Na-
1

Na -
I

Oa -
i

0MdvLmaXmr
R

NNONEua) 

in4
—

 

Om

LAtaJQOQ

aJ

4O a

X

to

fC
LO

j
C

i

NO

m
aJ

a
O

v
1

U

C
V

)
 

G
J

O

v
O

N
Q

- 
O

L

O

O
Q

fG

U

O
1)

u

O

L

C
p

O
m

N
i

G

OL

3
Q

aJ

m
O

a
OGUN

O
 . 

Z

O
C

c
v

E

a
cpo

C

v  

L
G

A

O

a
J

a
J

o

J
p3

cD

4J
u

v
' 

N
oU

a
m

id
c

c

i
O

v

m
>

 

4
A

Z
n

O
a

J

V

G
A

G
A

ON

IA

fC

tG
c
( p

C
c

H
C

l

m
v

C

E
v

CL

a
p

c
u

L

3

L
J

O
4- 

p
O

w
_

 

N

O
C

7

U

N
a) 

ON
a

J

o
O

c0
m

in
0

aJ
u

3
N

C2
L

- 
c

O

v

cu
u

N

CL

H

a

N

0
N

00

N `` 
3

U

v
t

J
L

o

fCG
0

a

O
j

3

N
t0

U

3+
 

t
V

)
 

a
U

v
0

0
GA

v

O
O

 (
A

+
 

Q

o
CL

a
J

C

a
J

C
l

p
C

4
-
 

N

Z

a

tGc
u

t
 

0

3

U

m

O

o
o

c

U
0

0
N

v
3

O

m
2

O
= 

N
Z

c
L

m

O

co
O

4—
 

a

Q- 
O

J

MQ

t6L
O

3
E

L

a
) 

a
) 

V

cG

N
E

ar
v

p

C

L
Q

C
Q

h
D

c
_

 
aJ

m
C

O

O
Z

V
' 

m
N

O

v 

N

b
0

W
aJ

2
M

u
f6

L
C

1
O

u

O • 

N
O

m

a1
N

c
C

U
a

O
Cf0

u

v
i

n
s

C

0

0
to

a, 

C
C

L
L

O
f0

C

N

O
C

C

O

Lv
X

3
0

O
t

O
a

 
c, 

cO
L

c
a

a

m

C
UCw C

c

Z

j
0

Z
N

N
v

N

v
a

J
N

L
J

t

C
u
p

O
Cc
o

O

Q

a
) 

U
3

O

O

N
C

l (
A

fa

C
N

p
44—

 

p
C

3

i

NIn
C

O

O

w
W

C1
p

OL

ON
0

tea) 
d

C
L

n

C
L
U

C
a

C
N

41
a1

to
c
n

Om
3

Z
4
.-

 

O
p

C
f

G
A

c
CJ

w
. 

O

C
f0

C
t

N
L

O
in

J
Y

I
L

O
O

ON
N

C
CN

L
E

N
c

C
j

m
p

m
fG

a) 

O
1nL

a
, 

O
^
 

0
a

V
f

C
O

L
E

V
) 

f
l-
 

C
r0L

L
V

L
C

O
co

C
L

u0
U

c
v

Q
E

E
to

r

c
c

v
E_ 

t
O

1
CO

M
EO

O
E

L
L

W
C

U
C

2
J

v
i

N
U

in
N

U
O

X
m

O
w

O
O

O
O

O
LnN

Ln
L
r
u

H
O

a
CalJ

L

L
L

. 
O

p
Vf

L
O

c
C

u
 

OCC O
C

L
O

U
CO

Q
a1

0to
0

W
C

i
1n

Q
aJ

C
d

N

p
t
!
 

d

tG
O

O
O

O
c

4
A

N
Q

) 
L

C
C

Q
V

ffa

v

a
U

N
cNCU

m
L

 
n

0

fGR
O

J
m

NO
O

Ow
L

CO
O

m
O

O
O

N
GA

C
N

C
f0

C
C

O
a

E
+

 
Ln

C
N

L
Q

O
co

a
J

O
cu

Q
p

O
N

C
L

N
nX

cG
O

CL
-
 

C
s

L
C

3
m

p
U

V
) LO C

Z

L
+

 

a
J7

O
O

O
>

 
rCa
J

n
3

a
c

a
) 

C
j

O
L

4
- 

w
a1

0
a

) 
W

a
) 

4
J

a
) 

v

E
a
 

Z
>

 
c

a
t

4
- 

u
v
i

c
o

v
E

v
i
 
 

L
nLto n

L
n

v
V

i
L

, 
o

V
i

V
i

O
m

W
a

Q
O

Q
N

Wo
c

wa, 
Z

c
u

L

u
u

v
L

U

C
C

 .
1
w

W

p
Wo

c
R

Wm

Q
1

w
C

C
3

ow
c

v
w
t

c
W

E
OQ

Q
. 

E
o

W
O

W
iE

W
Wm

G
A

e
W

V
W

CC
U

L
W

W
UG

A
L

m
C

ro
m

i
C

O
G

A
O

a1
aJ

a
a

J

2
H

Oa
Y

a
) 

o
°Jc

4
-
 

a
v

Na-
1

Na -
I

Oa -
i

0MdvLmaXmr
R

NNONEua) 

in
4
—

 OmLAtaJQOQ

aJ4O a

to

i
m

aJ

a
O

U
a
J

E
Jai

L
E

L
f0

O
Q

fGU
OZ

O

O
 +

+
 
t

t
OL

aJ

Q
Z

0

c
v

E
v  

O
O

N
O

o

E
+

L
-

U
cD

E
V

4
—

 

i
O

v
C

'-.
o

O
o

G
a

V

m
IA

tG
c
( p

O
m

CL
G

pvO
i

m
3

4
-
-
 

N
C

G
L

N

O
C

L
U

L
G

J
i

a
 'O

N
L

c
IA

aJ
u

v
aJ

O
O

H

a

N
H

00

N `` 
3

U
G

A
J

L

fCG
0

a

O
j

N
t0

3+
 

Q
b

n
C

O
4 

a
U

v
M

m
H

v

o
CL

U
o

a
t
 

0
U

O
O

3
c

U
0

0
N

a
) 

O
N

Z
C

n
  

m
c

U
co

io
O

O
4—

 
a

Q- 
O

MQ
C

O

L
a

J

0
o

cG
E

a
+

 
ar

v

C

L
n

 , 
O

Z

G
A

O
+

 
v 

O • 
O

F
-
 

m
V

) 
F

- 
C

 •
- 

O
w

c 
N

v
i

E
a

c
0

m
a, 

E
o

U
L

p
N

m
C

Lv
X

3
0

O
t

M
U

c
p

L
L

w

1

d
d

C
mCw C

Z
; 

a
 +

 
N

t
!
_

 
U

N

w
C

v
E

E
Cup

a
C

<
 

O

w
 '

in
N

O
O

O
I

N
w

C
N

p
44—

 

r -i
i

i
c
a

O
Z

E

C
L
U

Na-
1

Na -
I

Oa -i

0MdvLmaXmr
R

NNONEua
) 

in
4
—

 

Om

LAtaJ

QOQ

a
J

4O a











D









O
c

a
N

1
a

) 
v

1 - 
r0

0
O

N
c

t
E

a
J

C
l

a
) 

C
r0

O
O

N
o
0
 +

+
 

0
-

2
a

m
t
!
 

p
0

U
a

) 
O

 '
O

O

O
O

 `
0

N
M

 +
+

 
rp

C
 >

>
 

O
O

C
s

O
a

) +
+

 

O
b
n

to `
O

100
C

0
 (

C

L
N

c
c

1

C
L

M
C

0
u

y

C
  

ro
O

a
J

c
a

O
ro

ro
O

C

a
 ''^

 
O

E
In

L
n

a
A

O
c

s
O

a
) 

a
L

n
U

 +
J

a
) 

Ln - 
U

O
C

cu
4

1
a

)

U
Q > 

v
O

C
m

C
L
-
0

 
'
 

N
C

 - 
iJ

  
O

s
 
=

 
O

v
—

 
v
U

Z
a

o
c
 °. 

3
 `°-

0a
a

= i
V

) 
c
0

o
c

c
v
°
 

H
a

s
a

) 
a

) 
L

n
a

) 
a

) 
a

) 
ra

a
) 

Z
 
-
-

Z
X

r0
L

a
J =

 

L
) 

t]
q

 +
, 

O
 -

p
 -

a
a

1
C

L
a

) 
a

) +
' 

a
O

u
l

a
) 

0
 +

' 
c

o
o

a
r
'
 
°

N
'  

N
 

O
 °" " 

O
o
s
 
°
-
 
°
 

o
 °

 °
 

O
L

y
V

)
 

Q
 -

p
Z

 
 

O
 =

 
v

u
c

Q
' 

O
N

M
w

 
°
°
 

N
fC

a
E

 +
, 

O
a

) 
a

 
°
 

N
 ,  

m
C

L
1

C
 °

 
o
f

C
 _

in
C

u
O

O
 '

O
p

O
U

a
) 

a
)

L
A

C
a

)  
U

0
 - •

a
J =

 
C

a
O

 '
n

u01. 0
L

C
v

C
 *

' 
a

p
 -

0
s
 
=

 
r0

L
O

O
 =

 
O

p

Z
a

) 
N

 -
a

O
r0

d
r0

a
r0

C
o

L
V

, '-' 
m

v
i
 

O
C

 - 
C

7
O

aJ
y

J
o
f =

 
C

D
l0

0
0

O
s

f0
 ' 

s
a

) 
v

r0
vp

i
O

-
0

m
  

O
3

y
C

O
a

J
fC

 -
p

r
 
-I

O
v
)
 

C
U

 .
O

A
 =

 
a

) "
O

 •
L

N
 

J
r0

m
 /

I
1

c
C

L
 °^ 

a
 
;
+

 
_

 
'

in
 ^ 

C1A
L

r
n

O
 -

+
 

4
) •

L
N

O
L

i
V

r0
y

c
o

—
 

C
L

a
) 

U
c
u

0

2
L

a
) 

a
) 

m
o

0
a

In
v

v
o

v
s
 
•

L
a

) +
J

ro
C

 >
 

a
J

f0
cig

a
, 

4
-

1

N
 
>

 
-

a
N

c
o

V
I , 

s
s

a
 , 

a
L

ro
 ' - +

 
O

s
L

L
n

 •
N

 =
 

a
) ^ "

a
c

4
0

 +
•+

 ' 
c

rB
O

>
 

o
c

U
 ., 

t
O

u
 
+

%
 

O
a

) 
a

) 
O

f6
 *

' 
C

 '
a

U
 . +

; 
o

O
c

a
N

a
) '

a
4
J

C
W

D
co

Q
) ++ 

z
 
-
 

c
u

s
E

 +
J

v
c ° `—

° 
3

c

3
 -

a
v
 +

J
 
"
 

u
Z

p
N

 ,.
n

0
0

a
) ` 

i
C

u
L

n
a

) 
N

y
 
+

+
 

ro
u

U
u

V
f _

U
 ' `

 
J

E
 +

L
+

 

y
W

e
i

Lm

O
Zau
o

R
e

L
A

L
n

o
O

1

o
A

 +
j .

O
n

 -
a

v  > 
p

c
°1C

N
o

p
o

C
D

O
O

L
4

J
C

E
O

ZS
L

n
C

O
c
n

r0
 +

+
 - 

c
C

Q
) 

C
C

d
D

c
a

d
Q

 ' 
v

y
C

f
C

t
N

a
U

O
a

N
M

 .
0

J
  

O
O

 •
C

 ''' 
N

C
u

u
b
D

l6
 "

O
a

) 
N

7
v
 
.

0
S

 =
 &

 ' =
 

1

0
3

r
i

L
4

, 
O

=
 

C
 "

a
V

f
C

o
L

C
O

A
p

  
O

C
i

v
f

O
O

O
O

y
a

 
+

,
 

v
 
-

a
in

N

c
d
 >

 
C

) 
f0

C
N

U
N

 -
p
 
.

0
 
.
 

L
p

O
y

O
O

7
=

 
y

t0
t0

t0
O

o
L

a
) .

O
 +

 
m

y
N

a
, _

 ° ' 
o

41
rC

s
s

a
, +

 
a

 
-
c
 
^
 

D
m

M
M

M

O
E

L
C

E
O

Ln
V

, 
s
 
-

a
 
°
 

n
C

°
 

u
O

o
U

s
R

a
m

O
 

n
 
°
 

D
>

 +
, 

c
O

p
a

J
O

>
 

o
 .

c
 
_

 
C

7 +
 

v
m

o
 

Z

O
t

N
N

M
m

b
D

a
 
_

m
N

a
4

u
a
) >

 
C

v
a
l

C
O

C
N

O

U
U

 '

to
C

 `
n

 `
r

c
o

 •
 

f6
c

am
i

am
i = 

p
0

 . 
a

O
 =

a
s

m
 //

d
 

a
) 

O
cO

i
n

W
 •

V
Q

E
O

p
O

L
L

1
O

a
L
 _

 *' •
L

 
(
 

LU
a

Q
) 

t
O

M
V

 
•
•
+

 
(
 
!
'
 

ll1

F- 
a

O
O

c
p

a
4
A

N
O

ra
 -

Op
c

c

to
b
D

 ° 
L

U
 
'

a
Z

G
E

o
u

m
c
h

m
c
h

L
L

 >
 

O
O

U
C

O
 _

 
L

a
) 

4
,
 

O
O

a
) +

, '
n

a
) 

4
0

a
J

S
 +

+
 _

 
OL ++ 

1

O
p0

U
r

N
to

rho
0

1 - 
ra

u
p

N
O

O
 -

a
O

 +
'
C

, •
c

c
p

 
^
 
+

 
r0

v
m

C
O

O
O

r0
C

O
N

0
 

in
L

4
r

C
N

a
a

J
c
 
°
 

ra
O

c
c

a
) •

C
a

) 
N

i)
 

a
) 

tD
L

n
L
n

U
u

 ' 
m

v
0

p
O

L
L

p
O

C
p

O
E

O
O

N
C

C
M

M
M

N
C

O
 _

 
O

C
 -

O
 -

O
 +

+
 

u
a

) +
' '

u
L

n
N

X

U
s4

-
1

O
O

 >
 

L
t0

E
N

C
~

 
C

y
y
 
+

'
 

C
 +

+
 

a
) 

a
1

C
 +

' 
a

) 
L
u

r0
 .'
n
F

-
 

c
N
t

a
J

c
 
`
^
 

O
 ° 

U
Q

0
u

v
O

O
O

N
v '' 

3
E

0
c

o
m

 _
u

v
3

co ++ 
O

O
O

 >
 

O
4' 

E
a

a
C

r0
D

a
O

U
L
 
 

E
 '

O
w

m
O

C

L
L

o
A

 +
1

U
 

C
p

 
+

 
C

L
E

  
7n  

O
O

 "
a

to
 '

Q
u

>
 

p
w

O
 

C
u

 
'

u
c) O

U
O

a
°
 

O
a

) 
a

a
 
"
a

ro
c

L
n

L
 
+

J
3

s
 
°

C
V

, 
L

4
- 

O
C

o

r°a
t
o

c
t

a
) 

a
) 
t
 
>

 
t

t
f°

' 
o

c
U

  
OLL

C
 

Q
3

v
N

L
n

n
r0

to
C

 +
+

 +
J
 
+

J
 
,
 

a
 
+

,
 

L
C

0
4
+

 +
+

 
a

ro
O

w
 
+

,
 

a
) 

y
C

a
) 

N
N

e
t

N
 
,
 

u

a
) 

N

c
h

C
 '

O
V

j
N

N
L
n

N
N

u
N

C
u
j

4
' 

U
' 

W
m

 '
a

y
C

O
V

T
r
i

I

Q
a

) 
a
r ._

 
Q

wo
v

c
Q

c
Q

Q
c

Q
Q

}_
 

ro
Q

c
a

) 
o

 =
 

H
rca

C
7

p
U

 *
 

N
 
.
^
•
{
 
°
 

L
L
U

a
) 

O
O

w
 
(

D
w

-
 

w
M

w
w

w
0

m
m

- 
w

L
t- +

, ' 
N

 ?
 

I

v
io °

C
a

) '
u

  .°
- 

o
a

: —
 

c
o
o

z
 
•
°
 

v
 
>

 
E

E
 * 

e
n

o
0

0
W

U
w

C
W

L
U

W
p

C
N

 +
J
 ^

 +
+

 

L
M

C
U

 =
 . 

O
 =

 
r0

 =
 

v
2

C
L

2
rco

2
vO

i ' ++ + _ .'^ 
O

U
r
 
-I

OL = 
N

Q
s
 
%

D
w

tC

O
Q

O
L
L

L
L

O
0
0

Z
 

O
 '

a
E

O
Z

ra
r
n

Ln
4

=
 

O
U

O
r0

a
°
 

s
ou

U
ro

O

N

NNONva
J

L

U
N

O
U

DO
u

Y
a

y

V

0
a

) 
C

v
v

o

OQ
Q

2









E







PFWLN0tocEON

OtidmYmaMa) c7mmcN7aCmUN

PL

0m

L

O4-
1N

O4
1

OL
O

LOA
C

U
0 N

L
+

 

c
O

s
O

O
L3

J
O

N
>

 

O
O

N

a
O

O
N

i
N

4
A

L
L

N

2

o
v

m

3
4
- 

O
C

a
1

O
+ O

c

C
ol

o
o

L- 
UL

n
4
 

L
n

E
OL

n
. 

a
, ._

_
 

v
O

N
O

d
L
n

O
A

c
O

oL
O

O
Oa

m
NO

L
a

o
-
 

M
p7

a
a

m
N

1

O
a

4
-
 

o
U

O

Q
U

-
0

OL
O

c
3

0
c

N
E

O
O

L
z

O
—

 
O

U
Z

OU
L

N
N

lD
O

f0
OU

O
L

U
O

cu
L

O
A

4- 
M

O
m

a
O

L
m

L
m

L

O
L
O

O

aO
z
O

U
N

O
a

vp
Ln

N
V

)i

c
E03

0
cemQ CU

m

m
O

0
4

A

O
N

O
3

a
E

v
E

L
O

O
W

y
c

N
s

O
E

0
U

U

oLpLOLNO
O

m
Q

) 
Ov

U
mN

L
a

-
 

n
N

=
 

m
m

Um
a

L
4
1

ma
L
T

U
o

N
V

L
J

O
w

>
 

N
t

mc

zL
U

O

3
mti4

a
o
o

O

V
)
 

NO
X

mr
i

mO
c

c
an

L4
J

p
3

L4
1

m
O

O
GO

M
Q

OA
c

c
mw

a
O

O
U

L
n

m
L

4
-
 

4
- '

V
d

N

LU
z

L
Q

L
n

m
M

O
, 

v
t
=

 
O

O
vN

U

I
Q

a

f60

C
L

o
a

 
3

c
^
 

O
N

fl
O

3
O

0
O

Ln
N

N
m

m
UL

LN
O

c
C

41U
N

a
) 

O
a) 

L
c

N
O

L

O
O

m
U

m
L

O
L

mV
N

U
O

L
a

O

N
Q

U
O

O
L

a
a

f- 
E

a
O

N
LU

O
 +

-+
 

O
O

O

N
O

i
E

L
N

N
N

m
N

E
s

L
m

U
p
A

Z
H

Q
U

O
iZ

O
O

H
aJ

c
U

O
OA

d
m +

r
O

Nc

O
Q

m
m

Z
O

E
v

p

O
A

L
O

O
m

a
N

=
 

Q
) 

O
O

L

M

Z
a

0
p

p
L

O
L

m
=

 
N

O
U

m

W
Z

3
 -* 

0
. 

U
p

J
m

m
L

U
ON

n
cmo

m
O

 +
, 

N
L

Z
G

CQC
0

m
N

m
O

O
O

O
Q

l
O

m
 (

D
U

m
Q

U

Q
j

O
V

i
0Z

O
0

O
O

a
) 

O
L

Q
W

U
L

z
z
0

C
U

o
m

 
U

O
m

3
D

O
O

L
- 

0
0

D
D

C
- 

O
OU
 

m
pA

L
J

a
L

O
m

OL
L

+
 O

N
Ln

0
OL

2
4

., 

a
C

0
E

O
c

u
O

A
N

p
c

vii
a

M
U

 °
=

A

0
N

w
OL

m
4- 

am
—

 
OL

N
O

c
O

+
 

O
O

N
O

O
U

v
_

 
L

m
O

J
O

O
L

N
E

O
Q

O
O

N
N

U
L

2
O

a
_

 +L
+

 _
 

O
a

E
Q

U
U

U
n

L
U

E
 

7
m

m
0

OA
O

p
m

, 
L

m
 ` 

O

Q

wZ

m

U
L

i
O

m
Q

c
7N

4A
OU

ON
m

L

L
U

nX

Q
N

N

4
-
-
 
*
'
 

Q
O

A
L

c
c

00
O

N
p

A
m

O

v
L
l

O
jO0 Oc

OU
t6

L
Q

LO
a

C
NN

N
SLQ U

^
 

N
o

O
c

O
a

n
o

t
N

O
O

s
m

c
O

n
m

cu
Q

)i
C

m
O

G
U

—
 

H
N

F- ate+ U
U

_
 

m
U

I
Q

m
N

O
cuL

L
D

Q
 +

 
to

V
' 

W

N

O
a

O
NN

m
L/) 

O

4
1

O

v
a

p
0

v
u

U
=

 
O

m

N
O

a
O

0
1

U
OU

w
0

O

J

t
p

O
O

=A
O

W
0

O
o
0

O
c
c

z
O

 . 
L

L
c

o
c

Q
F

a
N

c
m

>
 

O
a

A
L

c
m

L
 
,
 

O
O

U
0

O

u
1

W
r

a
) 

L
M

oL
—

 
O

O
L

Cl) 
oL

L
n

M
O

N
N

La
i

O
L.L_ 

4
. 

O
O

aJ
c

L7
a

,
 

cc

U
=

 
a

L
a

Q
U

m
O

N
N

L
a

Q
L

m
O

r
n

O
m

v
0E

0
OLF, 

cu
O

v
a

a
=

 
N

L
O

N
N

L
W

m
em

W
M

W
E

=
 

N
O

L
+

 
O

to
L

L
L

O
Q

 +
' 

4
-
 

o
U

c
N

a
J

V

OE
mc

N
0
0

r
i

N

I
n
m

L
u

U
v
i

0
L

ncA
L

n
L

n

ma
O

E
a

L

Q
W

a1
m

Q
Ln

m
Q

w
Q

U
m

Q
a

O
Q

X
r

c
O

D
W

  
m

m
C

a) 
D

O
w

M
C

7
W

w
w

U
LU

m
=

 
p

O
Z

W
w
t

io
w

p
m

W
0

E_ c
UOAt

z
w

E
T

c
U

m
W

N
4

- 

ON
O

m
m

L
m

am
i

p
c

L
'
 

t
C

O
U

O
U

z4Ln A
O

O

z
N

L
n

N
O

m
U

j
c
=

 

Q
v

2oL
N

w
m

3
4
-
-
0

-
0

o
a

o

PFWLN0tocEON

OtidmYmaMa) c7mmcN7aCmUN

PL

0m

LO

4-1NO4
1









Item F















0Olo V
11C

o,
W

 --
o  

v
 

o
o 

zQ 
w

OI
CU0

. 

V
O '

ZCM°
o

Q
b

u
o

o
O

o
W

c
Q

b
o

f
0

to

L
n

o
Lj.

0
0

0•  
w

3
z
o

0
00

o > > 
o

O
w

N
O

s
 °

ocNv
3

W
cd

c
W

4
-
 

a3

o.
W } 

Z 
o

i
C, 

C', 
o  

v
 

cd
cd

Ri
w

U
W

N
U

o
V

p 
wz'

l.
rf

N
o

C
d

s
, 

o ^ 
v, 

o
w

o 
1

1- 
oM

4
a
lo

o

t, 
w

 
o

M
y' 

V
O

En

L
L

J
o

L
 -

C
N

C. > 
c

U -
0

O
a°i ' 

C7
o

mon
N

2
w

O
 " . 

m0
V) 

o
r -

I .
t.

o'
ti

3: 
Q

0
c
d

u
wc) 

oR: 
ox.

o
o

75
U

W
Q1

C0
x

U
E

A. [ ` 
r. 

cd

b
0
 ' 

LL. 
Z

m
 .

3
v

O
O

V
 

w
a -i

g
W

W
a 

a°i 

En

CS
W

y
r

V
) 

w
3

s." 
a' 

oc
O

c
J

C7
o
3

W
 

o
o

O
o

m
01 °

U
as "

Clcw
3 '

A
 °  ; 

O

W

4) 

O ° 
1

7
- 

O
N

i
.
 

w
V

) 
v

pQ • 
V

] 
tj

V
. 

0( 
W

o
C

Q
 

a 
rn

o >
 

o
ti -

d
o '  

U 
o = 

3
W

4, 
L

 . 
O

a> 
M

o , 
tti

bA
Q

b
N

F- 

M
O

ec ° 
O ' ° ° 

a4
C13

m

O
on

C> '
b

V
N

V5
WD

Q
Cd

L
M

O
N

° 
t. 

LL

Q! 
ca

O
L

 ^
 

M
 °

r
bA

a 
t` 

O
O

kr
0c) ~ 

U -
Z

 ' 
m

2
CJ `+

N
W

o
p

.
Z

o
O

N
 

o
v

m
N

O
Ql

C
m

m
Uate, 

r -
I

m

3
O

C
U

v
c

m
W

m

vO

4—
 

O

x
4

J
4

J

t

W
L
n

m
m

of
C- 

O

V
) 

m
E

O

o

J

m
U

v

o
oof °, 

tea, 
4
-
 

v
m

o,'
O

„ 

Q1
O

4
 

s

w

c
0

L

s
m

f
l-
 

O

O

N

o
x

n

U
c

2
a

N

U
a

O
O

- 

u
t

c
0

=
 

C
- 

o

i
L

LA
VI

wO

VIO

75
Q1

0
0V

i
C

H

m
O

cu
w

C

CO

QN
QJ

Q) 
OL

4- 
4

' 

c

0

C

L

u
t

O

Q

UO

m
N

0
N

i

O
, 

C
L

U

Q1
d

L

O

O
C

m
4
+

 
Q

 

c
m

t
m
t

C

O

O
Q

Q
Q

J
p

v

U
U

c

m

m
u

0
m

m
w

v
a

b
A

u

w

U

C
L

m

Q

C

m
0

Q) 

U
N

O

a
J

m
 

C
L1

0

H

O
0
0

M

U
c

a
 

c

c
3

oDc
O

c
U

In
Q, 

cm
O

o
a

c
t
'
 

0
O

C
c

O
s

m

C
O

j
U

o
rp

Q
O

E
O

aJ
N

a
OL

3
L

o
0

n
v
°
',
 C

tea, 
m

0-
0

4
'

v
m

C
L

m
p

o
x

L
m

0
m

O

p
to

Q
' 

3
C

o
a

0
-

5

3
a

Q, 
m

cE

o
r

o
cOo

v
0

m
V

) L
7

m
m

xC
c0

O
QV

 
N

UQ
) 

V
) 

N
v0

0
 

p
O

L
) 

M
m

m
m

C
3O

xQ
j

tU
C

Q 
U

O
NN

O
m

v
+

 

Cc
x

W
t

Q, 
v

N

O
C

Q
O

CC
-
 

C
OUC UC+- 
o

m

m
N

C
C

L
c
' 

v
vac
U

a
d

A
o

O
C

-
 

m

o
a

v

o
o

a
j

a
4
- 

iA

w
Z

L
m

II^ V
M

4
1

x
4

1
O

4
1

In
L

- 

O
@

Z
L

4
C

O
L

Od
L

n
Q

J

C

CO

C4
J

m

4
~

 

O
Cm

o
N

OC

O
Q

4D
O

N
mQ

J
y

Cm

NQ1
C

n
H

a
V

) 
IZQ

U
C

L

C3
0

O
1

U
CC

C
t

C
- LO

Q
J

0
O0

m
Ui

U
O

4C
0

N
Q1

U
Q

) 
m

O
O

4
-
-
 

C
O

U
0

LMate,,, 
LOate-+ 

Ou
C

U
te•+ Q

a
Q1

0
y

N
O

Q
L

c
0

o
O

0
m

U
O

Qu
6

a
V

0
N

X
O

4
L

mL
N

Q
i

O
v

m
V

)
 

C
L

QJ
Z

Q
L

C
U

O
Q

J

a
 

V
)
 

Q
) 

Q
) 

O
Q

) 
c

Q
! 

Cc
4
-
 

0
4
 

0
Uv

0
O

Lm

m
C 

u
m

S
O

m
a

nm
v

m
ac

V
)
 

a

t
G

 
V

j
m

0Oa
V

j
O

41
m

j
L

v
V

0
c0

L
uC

o
o 

w
t3

3
a

w
 

W
o

O
-' 

a° 
cO

N
w

 
w

E
4
' 

Q
c
a

as
4
-
 

O
a
`, 

o
s

L
u

w

m
0mLu 3

J
io

L
O

C
m

t
UC

C
x
-
0

x
Q

 
L

Q
1

o
A

0
0

m

O
7

a
LJ

C
c

cu
C= 

c
wo

U
tt•+ 

O
a

k
o

r
'

I

OU
(

D o
u

t
Cm

 

o
om

t
Q) 
0

WD
Q

C

E
U

N
W

4
2

0Olo
V

11C

o,
W

 --
o  

v
 

o
o 

zQ 
w

OI
CU0

. 

V
O '

ZCM°
o

Q
b

u
o

o
O

o
W

c
Q

b
o

f
0

to

L
n

o
Lj.

0
0

0•  
w

3
z
o

0
00

o > > 
o

O
w

N
O

s
 °

ocNv
3

W
cd

c
W

4
-
 

a3

o.
W } 

Z 
o

i
C, 

C', 
o  

v
 

cd
cd

Ri
w

U
W

N
U

o
V

p 
wz'

l.
rf

N
o

C
d

s
, 

o ^ 
v, 

o
w

o 
1

1- 
oM

4
a
lo

o

t, 
w

 
o

M
y' 

V
O

En

L
L

J
o

L
 -

C
N

C. > 
c

U -
0

O
a°i ' 

C7
o

mon
N

2
w

O
 " . 

m0
V) 

o
r -I .

t.
o'

ti
3: 

Q
0

c
du

wc) 
oR: 

ox.
o

o
75

U

W
Q1

C0
x

U
E

A. [ ` 
r. 

cd

b
0
 ' 

LL. 
Z

m
 .

3
v

O
O

V
 

w
a -i

g
W

W
a 

a°i 

En

CS
W

y
r

V
) 

w
3

s." 
a' 

oc
O

c
J

C7
o
3

W
 

o
o

O
o

m
01 °

U
as "

Clcw
3 '

A
 °  ; 

O

W

4) 

O ° 
1

7
- 

O
N

i
.
 

w
V

) 
v

pQ • 
V

] 
tj

V
. 

0( 
W

o
C

Q
 

a 
rn

o >
 

o
ti -

d
o '  

U 
o = 

3
W

4, 
L

 . 
O

a> 
M

o , 
tti

bA
Q

b
N

F- 

M
O

ec ° 
O ' ° ° 

a4
C13

m

O
on

C> '
b

V
N

V5
WD

Q
Cd

L
M

O
N

° 
t. 

LL

Q! 
ca

O
L

 ^
 

M
 °

r
bA

a 
t` 

O
O

kr
0c) ~ 

U -
Z

 ' 
m

2
CJ `+

N
W

o
p

.
Z

o
O

N
 

o
v

m
N

O
Ql

C
m

m
Uate, 

r -I

m

3
Ov

c
m

W
m

vO

4—
 O

aw
L

A

t
m

m

of
C- 

O

V
) 

m
E

o
cu

v
E

m

v
m

o,'
O

„ 

Q1
O

V
)
 

U
Z

i

w
m

L

u
t

f
l-
 

O
O

N
OI= 

n
c

N

Q
O

o
L

a
, 

wO

VIO

L

M

O
D

H

m
O

cu
w

C

3L
L3

G
i

o
vc
D

C
L

c

0
Q

V) 
m

N

0
N

i
C

" 
m

Q1
d

L

O
C

c
m

m

O
3

cu

U

L
- 

N
C

a
v

U
U

v
m

x

L
- 

C
U

r
j
c

v
a

C
u

O
U

m

C
O

N
Q) 

C

a
Q

xi
H

D
H

N
M



NNONr -I

V
) 

NOb.0OQU
J

QOam

OM

m
L

N
M

L3M
E

L
V0

V

o
A

J
s

C
U

of
Q

i
LV

f0m
o

c

E
v

U
O

O
L

L
L

V
4
-
 

O
4

J

c
O

cu
t

C
t

m

m
L

OCO
N

4
J
L

C
Q

C

N
COiZ L

o
Q

Q
QO

U
O

O4
'' 

s
v
i

C
L

L
) 

C
7

o

Q
- 

m
X

Ov
N

O
c

cto
i

Q
cO

O
rC

N
C

l. 
4
-
 

r

0
L
n

m

OL

Cm
6

w
O

0v
O

in
N

u
.

OL
0
t

u

a
O

O
O

S

4
J

t
O

QO
Q

) 
C14

L
O

H
U

H
N

L
ri

1.6



G

Applicant requested to withdraw 
aplication and for 6-month 
reapplication wait period be waived 
- Council Granted Request









ORDINANCE NO. 2022 -   
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AND COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE MAP  
OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
WHEREAS, after notice duly given according to law, a public hearing was held before the City Council at a 

regular meeting held in the City Council Chambers, 214 N. Center St. in the Historic City Hall building, on 
Monday, December 5, 2022, at 7:00 p.m., for the purpose of considering and discussing the passing of an 
ordinance amending the Official Zoning Map and the Comprehensive Land Use Map of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, and the Planning Commission voted to recommend approval on Monday, November 28, 
2022; and, 

WHEREAS, Harry and Mollie, LLC. has submitted a petition to rezone 175.23 acres of Tax Parcel 3519-
90-5459 from Shopping Center (SC), Industrial Business Park (IBP-1) to the General Business (GB) Zoning 
District;  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the proposed rezoning area in 

the Industrial and Conservation land-use designation; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the proposed General Business (GB) Zoning District for Tax Parcel  3519-90-5459 is 

inconsistent within the Industrial land-use designation; and, 

WHEREAS, the General Business (GB) Zoning District is established to accommodate the widest range of 
uses providing general goods and services to the community. The intent of this district is to promote high 
quality, accessible developments serving the needs of the community and surrounding area; and, 

                  
WHEREAS, the proposed rezoning request is reasonable and, in the public’s best Interest.  Despite the 

fact that Tax Parcel 3519-90-5459 is located in the Industrial land-use designation, development trends 
indicate that the proposed General Business Zoning District would be compatible with other zoning districts 
adjacent to the subject property and the E. US 70 Hwy. corridor; and,  

 
WHEREAS, after completion of said public hearing and receipt of the recommendation of the Planning 

Commission, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro deems it advisable and for the best interest of the 
City and those residing within its zoning jurisdiction that the Official Zoning Map and Comprehensive Land 
Use Map of the City of Goldsboro be amended as herein below set forth; and, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina: 

1. That the Official Zoning Map and Comprehensive Land Use Map of Goldsboro, North Carolina, 
be and the same is hereby amended by changing: 

From Shopping Center (SC), Industrial Business Park (IBP-1) to the General Business (GB) 
Zoning District. 

From Industrial and Conservation Land-Use Designations to Commercial for Tax Parcel 3519-90-
5459. 

Z-25-22 Harry and Molly, LLC. (From Shopping Center (SC), Industrial Business Park (IBP-1) to 
the General Business (GB) Zoning District) 

The Wayne County Tax Identification Numbers:  
3519-90-5459 

2. The above amendment is effective upon the adoption of this Ordinance.  

 
Adopted this 5th day of December, 2022. 
 
 

___________________________   
David Ham, Mayor 

Attested by: 
 
 
______________________ 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk  

 
  



ORDINANCE NO. 2022 - 
 

AN ORDINANCE DENYING AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AND COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE MAP 
OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
WHEREAS, after notice duly given according to law, a public hearing was held before the City Council at 

a regular meeting held in the City Council Chambers, 214 N. Center St. in the Historic City Hall building, on 
Monday, December 5, 2022, at 7:00 p. m., for the purpose of considering and discussing the passing of an 
ordinance amending the Official Zoning Map and the Comprehensive Land Use Map of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, and the Planning Commission voted to recommend approval on Monday, November 28, 
2022; and  

 
WHEREAS, Harry and Mollie, LLC. has submitted a petition to rezone 175.23 acres of Tax Parcels 3519-

90-5459 from Shopping Center (SC), Industrial Business Park (IBP-1) to the General Business (GB) Zoning 
District; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the proposed rezoning area in 
the Industrial land-use designation; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the proposed General Business (GB) Zoning District for Tax Parcel 3519-90-5459 is 

inconsistent within the Industrial land-use designation; and, 

WHEREAS, the General Business (GB) Zoning District is established to accommodate the widest range of 
uses providing general goods and services to the community. The intent of this district is to promote high 
quality, accessible developments serving the needs of the community and surrounding area; and, 

 
WHEREAS, according to the City of Goldsboro’s Comprehensive Land-Use Plan (CLUP), incompatible 

non-industrial uses shall not be allowed to encroach upon existing or planned industrial sites. Rezoning the 
property to General Business will create opportunities for uses permitted by right in the General Business 
(GB) Zoning District to locate adjacent to existing or planned industrial sites; and, 

  
WHEREAS, the CLUP encourages new industrial development to locate in existing or planned industrial 

parks. Rezoning the property to General Business (GB) reduce opportunities for attracting new and existing 
industries to Park East.  Lastly, it will decrease the existing industrial park’s potential for future growth and 
development; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the proposed rezoning request is unreasonable and, not in the public’s best interest since 

the proposed rezoning classification will impair or injure the health, safety, and general welfare of the 
public; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed rezoning request could encourage development that could negatively impact 

properties in close proximity; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed rezoning request is not consistent with the Goldsboro Comprehensive Land-

Use Plan and Land-Use Map; and, 
 
WHEREAS, after completion of said public hearing and receipt of the recommendation of the Planning 

Commission, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro deems it unadvisable and not in the best interest of 
the City and those residing within its zoning jurisdiction. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina: 

1. That the petition to amend the Official Zoning Map and Comprehensive Land Use Map of the 
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, rezoning 175.23 acres of Tax Parcels: 3519-90-459 from 
Shopping Center (SC), Industrial Business Park (IBP-1) to the General Business (GB) Zoning District be 
hereby DENIED. 

 
Adopted this 5th day of December, 2022. 
 
 

___________________________   
David Ham, Mayor 

Attested by: 
 
______________________ 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk  









    Item No.______ 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
DECEMBER 5, 2022 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Operating Budget Amendment FY22-23 

BACKGROUND: Council adopted the FY22-23 annual operating budget on June 20, 2022. 

DISCUSSION: Community Relations – CDBG Repayment 
The City’s response to the HUD monitoring letter from October 11th, requires the 
repayment of activities deemed ineligible by HUD. The activities consisted of the 
following: 

IDIS # Description Amount Date of 
Transaction 

678 Rehabilitation Delivery $42,560.97 Payroll Related 
Jun-Jul-Aug 2020 

682 WISH 10,000.00 6/24/2020 
683 WATCH 10,000.00 6/9/2020 
685 COVID-19 Response Efforts 3,888.98 7/27/2020; 

9/14/2020 
686 Mephibosheth, Inc. 5,000.00 8/4/2020 
676 GWTA 5,840.00 12/3/2019 

Total $77,289.95 

The repayment is to occur on or before December 11, 2022.  These expenditures shall be 
funded with a reduction of contingency in the General Fund. 
An analysis of the Contingency Appropriation for the General Fund is presented: 

An analysis of Appropriated Fund Balance for the General Fund is presented: 

Date Description Adopted
6/20/2022 Ord 2022-31 FY22-23 Adopted Budget 1,075,365.00$ 

11/21/2022 Ord 2022-60 11/21/22 Golf Carts & Storage (266,000.00)    

Current Year Appropriations 809,365.00$    

12/5/2022 CDBG Payback 10/11/22 Monitoring Letter (77,289.95)$    

Proposed (77,289.95)$    

Proposed Ending Balance - Contingency General Fund 732,075.05$    

Date Description Adopted
6/20/2022 Ord 2022-31 FY22-23 Adopted Budget -$               
8/15/2022 FY21-22 Purchase Order Rollovers 1,183,863.21$  
9/6/2022 Insurance Proceeds FY22 for Purchase of Chevrolet Tahoes 11,000.00$      

Current Year Appropriations 1,194,863.21$  

Proposed -$               

Current Year with Proposed 1,194,863.21$  

H





LO
LO

LO

o
v
 
 

0

7
 

b
w

  
U

0
m

Cd

c
in

o
ani  

O

to

CNV
CcV

C] 
CcV

Q
0

y
O

o

0

w

m

N
to

O

I

C3
d

ani
an

d  
ani

W
ani

y
cwt

O
0

O

6
6
 

WZ (
1) 

Nr
q

LO
O

UM
LO

r -
q

Uocz N

c
n

U

N
w

c
c

O
N

N
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
CJ

cs
C

4
C

16
L6

CG
CfS

LN
L6

CD
C) 

L -Z
C

CC
C6

C) 
00

N
C7

N

N

c
d

0
d

O
O

Cfl
L

O
N

N
O

 (
M

CD

ON

N

G
q

Q
"

O

0

o
H

Q' 
U

O

C6
N

c
z

v

CrJ

z

Cn
CV

CV
00

67
O

00 ": 
i7

w
N

v
m

m

u

C
V

00
O

L
r

4
00

m
CV

O
y

1.
4

CV

1
0

N

r1
w

0

1
,

14
CYD -

4
CC -

4

z

6
t.

cC
C*) 

O
o

L

i

C;3
o

C

O
C

 -0
y

cis

O
P. N

p
v
i

609- 

d
C

7

0
0

0

Q
u

0
O-

0
7

c
l
o

0
0

U
 -

o

O
N

N
O

o
0

0
0

0
0

N
CV

CV

W

L6

P40
0

N
ifJ

CC
C) 

LN
O

CG
C'4

c 
0

CO
4

N
O

N
Co

t
N

O
=

 
CD

O
C

7

m
mO

OW
C'

J

w

N
m

LO
00

CEJ
O

00

CV
Ll1

00
CA

O
00

d
CSC

c
C

O
v

N
00

O
N

r --
i

00
CYD

N
m

00

m
o

c
W

1
0

m
 -

1
m

m

Q
—

, 
c
z

J
N

w
10

03
b

N
z

Ei3
6

4

o

EA
fA

N

ti
y

C
7

w
N

S

LO
LO

LO
L

O

0

U

0
m

Cd

s 

to

CNV
CcV

C] 
CcV

Cd
0

Cd
m

4) 
a

a '
a

I

C3
d

ani
an

d  
ani

W
ani

y
cwt

w
bl) 

GOD, 
6

6
 

WZ (
1) 

O
L
o

LO
O

UM
LO

r -
q

r
 
-i

0
0

0
 
(

D
0

0
0

O
m

O
c
c

O
N

N
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
CJ

cs
C

4
C

16
L6

CG
CfS

LN
L6

CD
C) 

L -Z
C

CC
C6

C) 
00

0
0

O
L

N
1
-

1
N

Cfl
L

O
N

N
O

 (
M

CD
a

) 
O

N
m

O
O

0
0

m
4

N
C

O
to

0
0

m
T

0
0

C6
N

C
rJ

I
C

V
CrJ

C
•i

CO
Cn

CV
CV

00
67

O
00 ": 

i7
w

N
v

m
m

v
C

V
00

O
L

r
4

00
m

CV
O

y
1.

4
CV

N
N

L
o

in
1
,

14
CYD -

4
CC -

4

6
t.

cC
C*) 

L
C

c
fr

cis
609, 

G
rk

d
s

609- 

0
0

0
0

0
1

-
4

0
0

0
0

o
O

0
0

0
0

o
O

N
N

O
o

0
0

0
0

0
N

CV
CV

C
L6

L6
CO

p'J
N

ifJ
CC

C) 
LN

O
CG

C'4
O

O
CO

4
N

O
N

Co
t

N
O

=
 

CD
O

C
7m

mO
OW

C'
Jw

N
m

LO
00

CEJ
O

00

CV
Ll1

00
CA

O
00

d
CSC

c
C

O
v

N
00

O
N

r --i
00

CYD
N

m
00

0
0

L
D

1
0

m
 -

1
m

m

H
3

G
Q

, 
Ei3

6
4

6
9

EA
fA

0a0F

0

0
m

C
d

a
to

O

Cd
0

Cd
m

4) 
a

a '
a

a

0
0

 "
0

U
C

3
d

ani
an

d
  

ani
W

ani
y

cw
t

w
bl) 

1
WZ

 (
1) 

y
o

d
o

d

Ei
E- 

F
C

F

0a0F



I



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- J l 3
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain real property at 2009
Rose Street ( Pin # 3509849535); and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269 permits the city to sell real property by upset
bid, after receipt of an offer for the property; and

WHEREAS, the City has received an offer to purchase the property described above, in the amount of

5.500.00 ( Five Thousand Five Hundred Dollars and no/ 100) submitted by Christopher White
Offeror); and

WHEREAS, Offeror has paid the required five percent ( 5%) deposit on his/ her offer in the amount of

300. 00 ( Three Hundred Dollars and No/ 100); 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina, that: 

1) The City Council declares this property as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes sale of the property described above through the upset bid procedure of

North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269. 

3) The Finance Director shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published in a newspaper of

general circulation within its jurisdiction. The notice shall describe the property and the amount of the
offer, and shall state the terms under which the offer may be upset. 

4) The Planning Department shall notify the adjoining property owners by U. S. mail that the property is
being offered for sale under the upset bid procedure. 

5) Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their offer to

the office of the Finance Director at 200 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 during normal
business hours within 10 days after the notice of sale is published. At the conclusion of the 10 -day
period, the Finance Director shall open the bids, if any, and the highest such bid will become the new
offer. If there is more than one bid in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the

new offer. 

6) Upset offer and deposit shall be delivered in a sealed envelope. The written offer proposal must

include the name of the person or business making the offer, address of said property, and Wayne
County parcel identification number. The offer shall be signed by the individual or person with
signature authority if a business entity. The outside of the sealed envelope should have the address of
the property, the words " Upset Bid" and include the address of the Property. 

7) The City of Goldsboro reserves the right to reject any or all offers at any time. 
8) If a qualifying higher bid is received, the Finance Director shall cause a new notice of upset bid to be

published, and shall continue to do so until a 10 -day period has passed without any qualifying upset
bid having been received. At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the City
Council. 

9) A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent ( 10%) of the

first $ 1, 000. 00 of that existing offer and five percent ( 5%) of the remainder of that existing offer. 
10) A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent ( 5%) of

the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier' s check, or certified check. The city will return the



deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying
higher bid is received; provided that sufficient time has elapsed to allow for the payment draft, if by
check, to clear the City' s central depository and be credited to such, the return of the deposit will then

be issued within 10 days of confirmation of clearing. The city will refund the deposit of the final high
bidder at closing or apply to the sales price, as determined at the time of closing by the Finance
Director. 

11) Any Offeror' s bid deposit shall be refunded if it is not the final high bidder; or if mutually agreeable
terms cannot be settled upon if no upset bids are received, provided that sufficient time has elapsed to

allow for the payment draft, if by check, to clear the City' s central depository and be credited to such. 
Refund will be issued within 10 days of confirmation of clearing. 

12) The terms of the final sale are: 

a) City Council must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will do within 30
days after the final upset bid period has passed. 

b) The Wayne County Board of Commissioners must approve the final sale by concurrence after
final approval by City Council. 

c) Buyer must pay with cash, cashier' s check or certified check at the time of closing. 
d) Buyer must pay closing costs. 

13) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the final high bid is
accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids. 

14) If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above is hereby
accepted. City staff is authorized to seek concurrence from the Wayne County Board of
Commissioners and upon such approval, the appropriate city officials are authorized to execute the
instruments necessary to convey the property to Offeror. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 5" day of December, 2022. 

Attest: 

Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk

1 4111mi-4 - 











J



00 

cUvLOmL
A

ClD

tr0Wv4
-
 

OvmQ
JnvDV
)
 

ONc4..
i

cOU

V
) 

cOrDWa
 

CrDNQ
J

Q
) 

tL0V) 
a••+ 
Q

J
V

) 

a
, 

VcN

zQ
1

CQ
J

0
1Q
J

atUL) 

QL
U

LLJ

o
n
  

i

t4, LOz0LnO Q

0C
7OUvL4

-
 

0UcOUUvL
U

Za0OWC
o

WcrOL
L

L
U

L
U

2
 

OZ

a. 

C
M

' 
O

4 
Q) 

L

L
CL

O
O

N
  

C

L

U
O

4- 

C
,°

c
_

° 
3

Q
 +

' 
U

V
Ca41

ON
O

cO
ra

L
U

Q
 > 

La
C

L
t
 
 
>

 

QJ
O

Q

V

0OV0vt4- 075
4- 

4- vO4
1cOQJQQ) 

r6cONmvr6Q) N7crsUO4• vCvc

cO4
1mUOV) 

a) 
tOQJQ, UUmO4. vQ) QOUQ) 

w

N

U

73
Q

c
Q) 

V
o

4_ 

v
O

E

v
o

 _
 

a, 
Q

%
 

LLn
r
u
t
o

0
L

a
0

cZ
3

c
L

O
O

in
O

4
o

vL

@

o
a

c
0

O
L

c

C
L

O

U
v

N

4
- 

U

a
o

4
• 

Q
4
-
 

O
C

Q1
M

U
Q

T

h.0O

L

v
>

 
r0

1) 
v

Q
t3

V

Crp
Q

a
-.+

 

L
X

N
t

7
Q) 

Lo
n

fl
O

A
a

s
O

I_
- 

Q
Q) 

NL N
4

" 
Q

) 

a O
0

a
n

C
F)

c
hc

v
M

O
C

QJ
N

V
)
 

G
C

. 

UF
C

 >
 

m
v
Q

C C
Q

a. 

C
M

' 
O

4 
Q) 

L

L
CL

O
O

N
  

C

L

U
O

4- 

C
,°

c
_

° 
3

Q
 +

' 
U

V
Ca41

ON
O

cO
ra

L
U

Q
 > 

L
a
C

L
t
 
 
>

 

QJ
O

Q

V

0OV0vt4- 075
4- 4- vO4

1cOQJQQ) r6cONmvr6Q) N7

crsUO4• vCvc

cO4
1mUOV) 

a) tOQJ

Q, 

UUmO4. vQ) QOUQ) w

N

U



0mI

YQ1

Uu

L

o
i

Q
1

3

L

v

O
f0

Q
1 : 

O

4
b
D

L

@

v
O

Q) 

4 
O

Q

C
O

4
4
- 

s
 
-

a
Q

) _ _ 
Q

Q
ro

E
v

Y

a
ca
a

3
a

p
cO

L
o

o4- 

L

wc
E

o
4- 

Q
, 

vt

E
a

, 

x
3

s
Q

_
 

3
L

L
O

f0
o°n

j
rca

L
cm

Q
. 

L
O

4-
1

to
Q

) 

Lp

C
O

Q
J

N
v

a
u

E
u
t

o
n

E
Q

J

c
o

U

c
 
+

 

M
N

a
c

p
c

m
O
t
4
J

w

c
m

c
o

o
o

E
o

3
T

3
O

N
Q

) 
Q

. =
 

c
m

c
4

J

4
-1L N

W
4
-
(

U
4
-
 

O
O

tw
N

c tin
x
x

a
j

0
o

u
Q

_
 

3

c
E

E
L

c
a

0
0
c
=o

o
i
.
 

L
o

0
L

Q
CU

7

a
o

v
Q

1

3
Q

Uc
O

Q
1

E
pp

a
, 

Q
Q

roc

V

E
oo

r
'
 

v
c

m
 °

 

a
L

ro
n

U
O

o

O
N

m
C

vi
c

p
u

0
O

v
C

C
coQ

N
V) 

Q
J

a-'' 
3

t
7

O
O

O
O

u
p

1
f
6

3
Q

! 
Q

U
v

E
J

cu
v

v
v

0
Q

) 
N

u
m

L
C

 _
 

o
H

t
v 

co
c

a
tp

v
p

p
p

Q
L

OQ
E

C
E> 

OL
v

N
N

Q
4

A
E

L
O

0
a

C
c

C
Q

J
c

c
Q

) 

O
ro

co
0

LF
O

f6
aco

U
V

I3v
V

L

in

N
o

E
2

4
 

1

m
c

4
- 

o
qLo- 

v
O

0mI

YQ1Uu3

Q
. 

vNQ
) 

Q
) 

O

NQ) 

4 
O

Q



K



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- ! / I

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CITY STAFF TO EXECUTE THE NECESSARY

DOCUMENTATION TO COMPLETE RADIO TELEMARY PROJECT PHASE -III

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro contracted with CITI in May/ 2020 to conduct a
three- phase project to improve and upgrade of the existing telemetry system; and

WHEREAS, the final phase of the project is budgeted in FY2023 at the cost of
316,388. 00; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro recognizes the need for, the upgraded telemetry system, 
in maintaining adequate monitoring requirements for the water and sewer system. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City
of Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

Council authorizes City staff to execute the necessary documentation to complete this
transaction. 

2. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
5th

day of
December 2022

Attested by: 

wl* 
Holly ones, Deputy City Clerk

avid HaiNi, Mayor



L



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 1 / S

CONTRACT TO PROCEED WITH THE REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF THE

NEW HOPE LIFT STATION BARSCREEN

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro currently owns one ( 1) bar screen at New Hope lift
station; and

WHEREAS, the New Hope Bar Screen is budgeted to be replaced in FY2023 at a cost of

335, 400. 00; and

WHEREAS, Laughlin -Sutton Company is a reputable company and provided the lowest
submitted bid Formal Bid FB 2022- 004; and

WHEREAS, it is recommended that the City award the bid to Loftland- Sutton Company. 
for the New Hope bar screen replacement Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with
Laughlin -Sutton Company in the amount of $335, 400. 00 to provide services for the New Hope
Bar Screen Upgrade Project. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
5th

day of December 2022. 

Attested by: 

Holly Aries, Deputy City Clerk



M



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- % 1 6

CONTRACT TO PROCEED WITH THE REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF

CHEMICAL BULK STORAGE TANK AT THE WATER RECLAMTION FACILITY

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro currently owns two ( 2) Chemical Bulk Storage tanks
at the Water Reclamation Facility; and

WHEREAS, the Caustic Soda Bulk Storage Tank is budgeted to be replaced in FY2023

at a cost of $118, 450.00; and

WHEREAS, Dellinger Inc. is a reputable company and provided the lowest submitted
Informal bid ( IFB 2022- 015 on 7/ 22); and

WHEREAS, it is recommended that the City award the bid to Dellinger Inc. for the
Chemical Bulk Storage Project; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and the City Council of the
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a
contract with Dellinger Inc. in the amount of $118, 450. 00 to provide services for the Chemical

Bulk Storage Tank Project of Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
5th

day of December 2022. 

Attested by: 

Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk

116"M

I," r A, Pin' 717i Har Mayor



N



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 1 1 7

RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO

PURCHASE USING PROCUREMENT EXCEPTION

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro currently owns and operates Automatic Transfer Switches
for the Water Treatment Plant and the Neuse River Pump Station, and a Generator system for
Westbook Pump Station; and

WHEREAS, the ATSs and Generator system are budgeted to be replaced in FY2023; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro is granted authority under NCGS 143- 129( e)( 3) to exempt
purchases from bidding requirements when purchases are made through a cooperative bidding group. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute contracts with Gregory Poole
under Source Well Contract # 120617 - CAT in the amount of $240, 905. 00, $ 90, 365. 95, and

794, 571. 00 to provide services for the Water Treatment Plant Automatic Transfer Switch, Neuse

River Pump Station Automatic Transfer Switch, and Westbrook Pump Station Generator system
replacement projects. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
5a' 

day of December 2022. 

Attested by: 

Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk

ivid Ham, Mayor



O



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 11 q

RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO

PURCHASE USING PROCUREMENT EXCEPTION

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro currently owns four ( 4) Water Reclamation Facility sand
filters manufactured by Aqua Aerobics Systems Inc; and

WHEREAS, Water Reclamation Facility sand filter #2 is budgeted to be rebuilt in FY2023 at a
cost of $189, 987.48; and

WHEREAS, replacement parts and services are specific to the machines and manufacturer; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro is granted authority under NCGS 143- 129( e)( 6)( i) to
exempt purchases from bidding requirements when performance and price competition for these
products are not available. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

Pursuant to the authority granted by the General Statute, the Goldsboro City Council
authorizes the use of the procurement exemption. 

2. Council authorizes City staff to execute the necessary documentation to complete this project. 

3. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the 5`
h

day of December
2022. 

Attested by: 

Holly J nes, Deputy City Clerk

Hasa



P











Q











R











S













T





U



  2023 Boards and Commissions Meetings   
Commission on Community Relations and 

Development 
6:00 p.m. 

Large Conference Room 
City Hall Addition 

Historic District Commission 
5:30 p.m. 

Council Chambers 
City Hall 

Mayor’s Committee for Persons with 
Disabilities 
12:00 p.m. 

Large Conference Room  
City Hall Addition 

Goldsboro MPO TCC / Goldsboro 
MPO TAC 

9:00-TCC / 10:00-TAC  
Anteroom,  
City Hall 

January 10, 2023 
February 14, 2023 
March 14 2023 
April 11, 2023  
May 9, 2023 
June 13, 2023  
July 11, 2023 
August 8, 2023  
September 12, 2023 
October 10, 2023 
November 7, 2023  
December 12, 2023  

 
Any subcommittee meetings 

will be noticed as needed 

January 3, 2023   
February 7, 2023  
March 7, 2023  
April 4, 2023    
May 2, 2023  
June 6, 2023  
July 11, 20223  
August 1, 2023  
September 5, 2023  
October 3, 2023  
November 7, 2023  
December 5, 2023  

January 19, 2023 
February 16, 2023 
March 16, 2023 
April 20, 2023 
May 18, 2023 - Hal K. Plonk Disability Walk 
  MCPD takes the month of June off  
July 20, 2023 
August 17, 2023 
September 21, 2023 
October 19, 2023 - Awards Luncheon 
November 16, 2023 
December 21, 2023  

– Holiday Lunch @ Restaurant 
 

Any subcommittee meetings  
will be noticed as needed 

 
February 9, 2023  
 
May 11, 2023  
 
August 10, 2023  
 
November 9, 2023  

 

    

Recreation Advisory Commission  
6:00 p.m.   

Senior House next to Herman Park Center  

Goldsboro Travel and Tourism 
Advisory Council  

8:30 a.m.  
Chamber of Commerce  

Mayors Youth Council  
5:00 p.m.   

Council Chambers 
City Hall  

Planning Commission / Board of 
Adjustment  

6:00 p.m.  
Council Chambers 

City Hall  
January 17, 2023 
February 21, 2023 
March 21, 2023 
April 18, 2023 
May 16, 2023 
June 20, 2023  
July 18, 2023 
August 15, 2023 
September 19, 2023 
October 17, 2023 
November 21, 2023 
December 19, 2023  

 

January 25, 2023  
February 22, 2023  
March 22, 2023  
April 26, 2023  
May 24, 2023  
June 28, 2023  
July 26, 2023  
August 23, 2023  
September 27, 2023  
October 25, 2023  
December 6, 2023  

January 4, 2023  
February 1, 2023  
March 1, 2023  
April 5, 2023  
May 3, 2023  
June 7, 2023 – Awards Ceremony  

 
-Further dates TBD- 

January 30, 2023  
February 27, 2023  
March 27, 2023  
April 24, 2023  
May 25, 2023  
June 26, 2023  
July 31, 2023  
August 28, 2023  
September 25, 2023  
October 30, 2023  
November 27, 2023  
December 18, 2023  

 



V



RESOLUTION 2022- d / I
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO

EXECUTE AN ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO AND CRY FREEDOM MISSIONS

WHEREAS, Cry Freedom Missions requests the installation of an air filtration and exhaust
system, which is required for the commercial kitchen as part of their business expansion at 111 N. 
Center Street, Goldsboro, NC; and

WHEREAS, the contractor did not secure a hood permit; and

WHEREAS, it was noted on a field inspection that the new hood/ air ventilation system

encroached over 6 feet into a City pocket park; and

WHEREAS, City inspectors notified the contractor that design plans, along with a permit
application, would be required per State Building Code; and

WHEREAS, it was also noted that due to the height and extension from the building an
encroachment agreement is required; and

WHEREAS, design option are limited, such that while it may be possible to design other options, 
they are cost prohibitive; and

WHEREAS, the use of an encroachment agreement would satisfy the legal way forward; and

WHEREAS, the use of an encroachment agreement would allow Cry Freedom Missions property
to extend over a portion of the City' s property, while providing no other rights. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an encroachment
agreement between the City of Goldsboro and Cry Freedom Missions. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
5th

day of December, 2022

Attested by: 

Holly fories, Deputy City Clerk



1  

 
 
 
 
 
 

ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT FOR 
ENCROACHMENT ON OWNED PROPERTY 

 
 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AND 

CRY FREEDOM MISSIONS/WAYNE PREGNANCY CARE CENTER, INC. 
 

 

 
            THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the _____ day of 

December, 2022, by and between the City of Goldsboro, a body politic, party of the first 
part; and Cry Freedom Missions/Wayne Pregnancy Care Center, Inc., party of the second 
part: 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
THAT WHEREAS, the party of the second part desires to encroach on the real 

property and airspace of City owned property, located at ______, and all subject 
properties depicted on the map attached hereto as Exhibit A, for the purposes of placing 
heating and air cooling equipment and exhaust equipment for use in the structure; the 
property of the party of the second part abuts at the rear of that property, with the 
structure thereon being at or near the line between the two properties.  The address of 
the property the subject hereto of the party of the second part is 111 N. Center Street, 
Goldsboro, N.C., both properties depicted in the Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, with the property of the City indicated by numeral #1 
thereon, and the property of the party of the second part indicated by numeral #2 
thereon.  Such encroachment more fully described as follows: beginning at the surface 
of the ground at the location depicted on Exhibit B specifically being an area that is 
thirteen (13) feet in width and seven (7) feet in depth from the building into the City’s 
property rising to a height of fourteen (14) feet; such beginning _______ (__) feet from 
the rear edge of the northern side of the building. 

 

WHEREAS, it is to the material advantage of the party of the second part, 
and any heirs, assigns and/or successors in interest, (hereinafter all such referred to as 
“party of the second part”) to effect this encroachment, and the party of the first part 
in the exercise of authority conferred upon it by law, is willing to permit the 
encroachment within the limits as indicated, subject to the conditions of this agreement; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED that the party of the first part hereby grants 

to the party of the second part, and any heirs, assigns and/or successors in interest of such, 



2  

the right and privilege to make this encroachment as shown on Exhibit B and any and all 
heirs, assigns and/or successors in interest are hereby placed on notice of the obligations 
and are hereby also bound by the following agreed upon terms, upon the following 
conditions, to wit: 

 
That the said party of the second part binds and obligates i t sel f  to install and 

maintain the encroaching facility, equipment, objects and/or materials in such safe and 
proper condition that it will  not interfere with or endanger travel a n d  u s e  upon said 
p r o p e r t y  o f  t h e  C i t y , nor obstruct nor interfere with the property maintenance 
thereof, to reimburse the party of the first part for the cost incurred for any repairs or 
maintenance to its property due to the installation and existence of the facilities of the 
party of the second part, and if at any time the party of the first part shall require the 
removal of or changes in the location of the said facilities and/or equipment, that the 
said party of the second part binds itself, its successors  and assigns, to  promptly  remove  
or  alter  the  said  facilities and/or equipment,  in  order  to  conform  to  the  said 
requirement, without any cost to the party of the first part.  If the party of the first part 
desires the removal of the encroachment, it shall give the party of the second part sixty 
(60) days written notice of the required removal. 

 
 That the initial term of this encroachment shall be for nine (9) years from the date 
hereof; unless notice of termination of the agreement and/or notice of removal is given by 
either party in writing at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the then active term.  
Such shall not automatically be renewed. 
 

That the party of the second part agrees to provide during construction and any 
subsequent maintenance o r  u se  proper signs, lights, no t i ces  and other warnings for 
the protection of those using the said property of the City under the said encroachment. 

 
That the party of the second part hereby agrees to maintain, retain ownership, and 

indemnify and save harmless the party of the first part from all damages and claims 
for damage that may arise by reason of the installation, failure and/or maintenance of 
this encroachment. 

 
It is clearly understood by the party of the second part that the party of the first 

part will assume no responsibility for any damage that may be caused to such facilities 
and/or equipment within the p r o p e r t y  o f  t h e  C i t y , in carrying out its construction 
and maintenance operations. 

 
That the party of the second part agrees to restore all areas disturbed during 

installation and maintenance to the satisfaction of the City’s Manager and/or Engineer. 
The party of the second part agrees to exercise every reasonable precaution during 
construction and maintenance to prevent eroding of soil; silting or pollution of the rivers, 
streams, lakes, reservoirs, other water impoundments, ground surfaces or other property; 
or pollution of the air. There shall be compliance with applicable rules and regulations 
of the NCDEHNR, DLR, and with ordinances and regulations of Wayne County, Ci ty  
of  Goldsboro  and other official agencies relating to pollution prevention and control. 
When any installation or maintenance operation disturbs the ground surface and the 



3  

existing ground cover, the party of the second part agrees to remove and replace 
w i t h  l i k e  k i n d  m a t e r i a l s  o r otherwise reestablish the same to meet the 
satisfaction of the City’s Manager and/or Engineer. 

 
That the party of the second part agrees to assume the actual cost of any inspection 

of the work considered to be necessary by the City’s Manager and/or Engineer. 
 

That the party of the second part agrees to have available at the encroaching site, 
at all times during construction, a copy of this agreement showing evidence of approval 
by the party of the first part. The party of the first part reserves the right to stop all work 
unless evidence of approval can be shown. 

 
Provided the work contained in this agreement is being performed on City property 

that is open to use by the public; the party of the second part agrees to give written notice 
to the City’s Manager and/or Engineer of the party of the first part when all work contained 
herein has been completed. 

 
That in the case of noncompliance with the terms of this agreement by the party 

of the second part, the party of the first part reserves the right to stop all work until the 
facility and/or equipment has been brought into compliance or removed from the City’s 
property at no cost to the party of the first part. 

 
That it is agreed by both parties that this agreement shall become void if actual 

construction of the work contemplated herein is not begun within ninety (90) days from 
the date of authorization by the party of the first part unless written waiver is secured by 
the party of the second part from the party of the first part. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties to this agreement has caused the 

same to be executed the day and year first above written. 
 
 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
 
 

By:   
Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager 

ATTEST: 
 
By:________________________ 
Laura Getz, City Clerk 
 
 
CRY FREEDOM MISSIONS/WAYNE PREGNANCY CARE CENTER, INC. 
 
 
By:____________________________ 
Beverly Weeks, President 


	Agenda 12-05-22
	ws item c1 - Goldsboro Affordable Housing Advisory Commission 11-21-22
	Goldsboro Affordable Housing Committee & Strategic Plan
	The Need
	The Solution
	Vision
	Mission
	Affordable Housing: What?
	Affordable Housing: Who?
	Affordable Housing: Where?
	Affordable Housing: Why?
	Affordable Housing: Why?
	Affordable Housing: Why?
	Affordable Housing Spectrum
	Housing Challenges
	Housing Challenges
	Strategic Considerations
	Strategic Considerations
	Strategic Considerations
	HOW?
	Committee Role
	Committee Role
	Committee Role
	Committee Membership

	ws item d - HUD
	Item A Minutes 11-21-22
	Item C - Z-21-22
	Item D - Z-23-22
	Item E - Z-24-22
	Item F1 - Harry & Mollie Annex Memo
	Item F2 - Harry & Mollie Annex ORD
	Item G - Z-25-22
	Item H - Agenda 2022-12-05 FY23 Operating Budget Amend
	Agenda Memo GF Amend 12-05-22_0
	ORDINANCE Op Amend 2022-12-05_0

	Item I - Upset Bid
	Item J1 - Panhandling Memo
	Item J2 - Panhandling ORD
	Item K - Radio telemetry
	Item L - New Hope Upgrade
	Item M - Bulk Chemical Storage Tank
	Item N - ATS Projects
	Item O - Intent to Purchase
	Item P - Annex J&J Farming
	Item Q - SU-13-22
	Item R - SU-14-22
	Item S - SU-15-22
	Item T - Council 2023 Calendar
	Item U - B&C 2023 Calendar
	Item V - Cry Freedom
	ADP1267.tmp
	ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT FOR ENCROACHMENT ON OWNED PROPERTY


